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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR"S REPORT
To the Shareholder of CLEANMANX SOLAR MENA FZCO

Report on the Avdit of the Consolidated Financial 5tatements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO (the
"Company” or the “Parent company") and its subsidiares (collectively referred to as the
"Group” |, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2025,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
staternent of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material

accounting poficy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2025, and of its consolidated
financial performance and Its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by Intemational Acceunting Standards Board (IASE).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our awdit in accordance with Intemnational Standards on Auditing (1585). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidoted Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics far Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) togethear with the ethical reguirements that are
relevant to our audlt of the consolidated financial statements in the United Arab Emirates
(UAE), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA Code, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion.

Material Uncertainty Reloted to Golng Concern

We draw attention to note 2 () to the consolidated financial staternents, which states that the at
that date, the Group's losses aggregated to AED 6,907,631 its current labilities exceaded its
current assets by AED 42,670,026, Further, certain subsidiaries of the Group heve acoumubated
lcsses and net deficlt in their equity Tunds. These events or conditions indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. However, the shareholder has committed to continuing the operations of the Group
and agreed to provide ongoing financial support to enable the Group to discharge its liabilities as
gnd when they fall due. Accordingly, these consolidated financial statements have been
prepared ona going concern basis. Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

continued..
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INDEFENDENT ALIDITOR'S REPORT
{continusd)

Responsibilities af Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financiol
Hatements

Management Is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the IASB, and
far their compliznce with applicable provision of the Dubai Airpart Free Zone Implamenting
Regulations 2021, and for such inteérnal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to frawd or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, managemeant is responsible for assessing the
Group’s abllity to continue as a poing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concemn and using the going concern basis of accounting unbess management either intends to
liguidate the Group or 1o cease operalions, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseemng the Group's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Avdit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1585 will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or In the aggregate, thiey could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

Az part of an audit in accordance with 1545, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of materal misstatement of the consolidated financal
statements, whether duge to fraud or error, deslpn and peform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate ta provide a basis
for cur opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= QObtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's Internal control.

continuged..,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(continued)

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies wsed and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

¢« Conciude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going comcern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability ta
continug a5 a going concern. If we conclude that @ material uncertainty exists, we are
reguired o draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures In the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to

continue as 8 golng concem.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and evenis in a manner that gives a true and fair view,

* Qbtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the finandal information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial staterments. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with povernance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We further confirm that the financial statements comply with the applicable provisions of Dubai
Integrated Economic Zones Autherity Implementing Regulations 2023, concerning the formatien
of legal Company at Dubal Alrport Free Zone, Further, we have obtained all the information and
explanations necessary for our audit and proper books of account and other records have been
maintained to provide true and fair view of the profit or loss and state of Group’s affairs in
accordance with the said regulation.

Partmer
Registration Mo, 5723
Dubai

United Arab Emirates

23 May 2025
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2025
Motes 2025 2024
AED AED
ASSETS
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment i 214,734,897 62,850,463
Intangible assets Th 28,210,510 -
Goodwill 8 8,573,475 =
Imrestments | 6,253,724 27,823,943
Other financial assets 10 - 13,424,867
Deferred tax assets 36ic) 481,343 -
£58,293,5949 104,099 273
Current assets
Imventaries 11 4,608,943 4,583,066
Trade and other receivables 1 10,524,751 7,896,008
Dther current assets 13 3,767,143 3352271
Due from a related party 14 - 3,495,655
Contract assets i5 4,127,161 7,158,311
Other financial assets 10 16,984,158 2,380,368
Cash and cash equivalents 15 27,670,511 0,900,972
87,773 BAT 38,766,651
Total assets 36,066,616 142,865,924
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder’s funds
Share capital i7 28,627,000 24 830,000
Other equity 8 {13,229,111) -
Share premium 18 56,242,627 44,192 401
Share application money 14 11,472,030 e
Statutory reserve 1,366 1.366
Accumulated losses [6,207,631) {14,398 824)
Foreign currency translation reserve (64,916} (2,694,148
Equity attributable to shareholder of the Parent £6,141,365 51,930,795
Non-contralling interest 20 35,808,192 2,540
Total shareholder's funds 122,039,557 51,933,791
Mon-current liabilities
Loans from shareholder 21 9,610,710 24,695,653
Lomg-term bomowings 22 80,915,008 41,647 2432
Provision for staff end-of-service benefits 23 278,728 250,608
Laace liabilities 24 839,78 o72.955
Deferred tax liability 36(c) 1,940,192 -
03,584,366 67,566,458
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A5 AT 31 MARCH 2025
[comtinued)
2025 2024
AED AED
Current Habllities
Loans from sharsholder 21 18,003,927 3,426,204
Short-term borrowings 25 73,072,858 2,042,300
Due to a related party 14 1,872,728 3,823,689
Trade and other payables 26 12,889,375 11,007 857
Other current liabilities 27 115,965 242 A28
Lease liabilities 24 104,638 133,338
Contract llabilitles 15 4,076,074 2,689,624
Corporate tax payable 36{c) 117,128 -
110,442,603 23,365,675
Total liabilities 204,027,059 90,932,133
Total shareholder's funds and liabilities 326,066,616 142,865,924

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
The repert of the independent auditor Is set forth on pages 1 to 3.

Approved and authorised for lssue by the shareholder on 19 May 2025 and signed on their behalf
by Ms. Shivanl Agrawal.
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Rewenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Dther income

Share of profit from associate
Share of profit from joint venture
Administrative expenses

Gain on acguisition of control
Interest income

Impairment on financial assats

Reversal of impairment boss on property, plant and

equipment

Finance costs

PROFIT/[LOSS) FOR THE YEAR BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense:
Current tax benefit
Deferred tax income/{expense)

PROFIT/{LOSS] FOR THE YEAR AFTER TAX

Other comprehensive income:

Items thet may be reclassified subsequently to prafit or loss:
Exchange difference on transiation of operations

Other comprehensive income for the year

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Profit/(loss) attributable to:
Shareholder of the parent
MNon-controlling interest

Notes

29

E{H

o |

9{a)

S(b)

32

23

12

34

36

2025 2024
AED AED
33,779,070 52,937,962
(25,278,128) (43,103,520)
8,500,942 9,834,342
796,566 158,787
1,138,837 353,153
2,146,476 29,581
(7,292,787) (3,292,009)
11,861,216 =
492,201 917,806
{269,110) =
20,376 -
(10,911,709) (3,981,976)
6,583,008 (1,980,316)
(298,321) -
262,476 {270,035)
(35,845) {270,035)
6,547,163 {2,250,351)
2,629,232 (1,954,977)
2,629,232 (1,954,977
9,176,395 (4,205,328
10,120,425 |4,205,328)
{944,030) =
9,176,395 {9,205,328)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated firancial statements.
The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 1to 3.
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) for the vear before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Reversal of impairment of property, plant and equipment

Provision on impairment on financial assets
Finance costs

Credit balance written back

Share of profit frem joint venture

Share of profit from associate

Fair value gain on investment in associate on acquiring control

Interest incoms
Provision for staff end-of-service benefits

Changes in:
= Inventaries
- Trade and other recelvables
- Dther current assets
- Contract assets
= Trade and other payables
= Other current liabilities
= Contract liabilities
Staff end-of-service benefits paid
Income tay paid
Cash used in operations
Interest paid
Net cash from/f{used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, plant and equipment

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Increase in margin deposits

Loan given to related parties

Repayment of loan received from a related party
Investment in joint venture

Met movements in investment in associate

Interest racelved

Receipts from/i payments to) from related parties (net)
MWet cash flow on acguisition of contral

Met cash used in investing activities

Page B of 61

2025 2024
AED AED
6,583,008 (1,980,316)
7,409,336 2,109,721
(20,376) -
269,110 -
10,911,709 3,901,976
(69,179) {29,927)
(2,146,476) (29,581)
(1,138,837) {353,153}
{11,961,216) -
{a92,201) -
89,894 88,705
9,434,772 3,787 425
{115,877) 289,277
{155,702) (5,211,054)
(62,003) 1,317,132
3,285,023 (510,329)
(2.443,317) 7,534,854
2,231,559 (5,399,256)
2,313 703 (5,075,518)
(72,023) (7,664)
(1,506,243) -
13,909 880 (2,175,133}
(6,910,317) |3,640,772|
6,999, 563 {6,824, 905]
[42,445,030) (33,697,208)
. 51,201
[7.316,757) -
(1,419,095}
(13,530,625) -
(2,730,912) (1,386,755)
- {9,200.000)
492,201 =
272,344 (3,159,211}
4,590,752 -
(62,087,122) {47,491,973)




CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

fcontinued)

Cash flows from financing activities

Receipts from share application money

Issue of share capltal

Receipts of share premium money [net of transaction costs)
Fayments to related parties (met]

Receipts of loan from a third party {net)

Receipts of loan from financial institution {net|

Transaction costs paid

Payment of lease liabilities

Repayment of lean/(loan availed) from shareholder (net)
Purchase consideration for the acquisition of additional shares
Dividend paid to non-controlling party

Met cash from financing activities

Foreign currency translation difference
Met increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (note 16)

2025 2024
AED AED
21,472,030 -
3,797,000 7,953,000
12,050,226 9,544,413
{1,851,156) (7,335,477)
27,500,263 =
36,091,192 29,170,049
(2,099,240) (111,380)
(511,93€) (118,568
(2,070,552) 9,200,000
{20,641,961) -
(3,448,000) -
70,227,866 48,302,037
2,629,232 (1,954,977)
17,769,539 (7,969,818}
5,900,972 17,870,790
27,670,511 9,900,972

The accompanying nates form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 1 to 3,
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

1 REPORTING ENTITY

al] CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO (the “Company™ or the “Parent company®) is a free zone
company with limited liability incorporated in Dubai, United Arab Emirates under
Implementing Regulation No. 1/58 iksued by the Dubai Airport Free Zone Autharity pursuant
bo Law Mo. 2 of 1996 and Its amendment No. {2) of 2000 and amendment Law No. |25} of
2005 (repealed by Dubai Integrated Economic Zones Authority Implementing Regulations
2023). The Company was registered on 23 May 2017 and commenced ils operations since
then. The registered address is 2E M032, Dubai Airport Free Zone, Dubal, UAE. These
consolidated financial statements include the operating result of a branch with license no.
3348 and operating results of the subsidiaries a5 mentioned in note 1(c).

b}  The principal activities of the Parent company and its subsidiaries (note 1{c) (topether
referred to as “the Group”) during the year were solar energy systems & components
trading and power generation, transmission & distribution eguipment, electrical fitting
contracting, sclar energy system installation, business management consulting and general
services. The Group was also engaged in production, assembly, distribution and
management services related development and construction of power plants.

£)  These consolidated financial statements Include the assets, liabilities and the results of
operations of the Company and its following subsidiaries;

Namea of the Country of Lagal Beneficial Principal activity License/

subsidiary incorporation ownership ownership / Reglstration
] controlling na.,
Imterest
5%
Cleaniax Alpha  Linited Arab SO 0% Renting al solar energy B10202

Leaselo FECO, Emirates systems. The solar energy

Dubal {a systems rentals are charged
controded on the basis of energy
subsldiary) et med.

Sunrocfs Envire  United Arab 100, 100% Electrical fitting contracting BO1633

Solar Energy Emirates and solar energy system

Systems LLC Installation

Cleanhax IHO Thaitand 1005 100r% Business management 105561050550

[Thailand) consulting and

Company general service

Lirniged™

Cli Pl Thailand 1oiiss 100% Production, assembly, 0105562063327
Emergy distribution and

{Thailand) Co., Mana@erment Senices 1o

LigE,*® buitd a power plant.

ClEanrman Thailand 449%, 100 Business management Q105565163748

Engineesing consulting and general

{Thailand} sErVice
Company
Limitoe™

Page 10 of 61



CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

d}

(i} Out of 500,000 shares, 1 share is held by individual &5 a nominee shareholder. The
Farent company halds remaining 499,999 shares.

(i} Out of 465400 shares, 1 share is held by individual as a nominee shareholder. The
Parent company holds remaining 465,399 shares.

(iii} Qut of 500 shares, 255 shares are held by one company [Asian Legal Solutlons Holding
Co Lrd) as a nominee shareholder. The Parent company holds remaining 245 shares.

The parent and the ultimate parent company is Clean Max Enviro Solutions Pyt Ltd,, India.
The management and control of the Company are vested with Ms. Shivani Agrawal and M.
Kuldeep Jain, both are Indian nationals and serve as Directors.

BASIS OF CONSOUIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent
company and jts subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2025, Contral Is achieved when
the Parent company is exposed, or has rights, to varfable returns from its invalvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
Specifically, the Parent company controls an investes if and only if the Parent company has:

= Power over the investee (l.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee};

& Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its imvolvement with the investee: and

*  The abllity o use its power over the investee to affect its returns:

*  The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee:

e Rights arising from other contractual agreements;

* The Parent’s voting rights and potential vating rights.

The Parent company re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
cireumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control. Consolidation of subsidiaries begins when the Parent company obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Parent company loses control of the subsidiaries, Assets,
liabilities, income, and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed off during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive Income
from the date the Parent company gains contral until the date the Parent company ceases to
control the subsidiaries.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income [(OCI] are attributed to
equity holders of the Parent company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are
rmade to the financial statements of subsidiaries 1o being their accounting policles into the
line with the Group's accounting policies. All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profit and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full,

Page 11 of 61



CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

b)

£}

d}

&)

B)

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a change of control, Is
accounted for as an equity transaction,

Losses within a subsidiary are attributable to the non-controling interest even if that
results ina deficlt balance.

These consolidated financlal statements comprise the net results of operations and the
operating assets and liabilities of the Parent company and its subsidiaries consolidated on a

lirve-by-line basis.

All material unrealised profit, where applicable on inter-company imeentory/sendces that
are purchased/avalled have been eliminated.

The results of the subsidiarles acquired or disposed off during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition or
up to the effective date of disposal, as applicable.

The reporting date of ahove-mentioned entities are 31 March.

MNon-controlling interest in the net assets of subsidiaries is identified separately from the
Parent company’s share of equity. The interest of non-tontrolling shareholders is the
amount of interest at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interest’s share of
subsaquent changes in equity. Losses applicable to the non-controlling interest in excess of
the non-controlling sharehalders’ interest in the subsidiaries’ equity are allocated against
the interest of the Parent company except to the extent that the non-controlling
shareholders have a binding obligation and |5 able to make an additional imvestment to
cover the losses.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compllance

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards issued or adopted by the Intermational Accounting Standards
Board (1ASB} and which are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 April 2024, and the requirements of the Dubai Integrated Economic Zones Authority
Implementing Repulations 2023,

Basks of measurement
The consalidated financial statements are prepared using historical cost, except for certain
aszets carried at Fair value.

Historical cost is based on the fair value of the consideration given to acquire the asset or
cash or cash equivalents expected to be pzid to satisfy the lizhility,
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

c)

d)

Falr value is the price that would be recelved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a llability in
an orderty transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Going concarn
The consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

When preparing the consolidated financial statements, management makes an assessment
of the Group's ability to continue as a going conearn. Consolidated financial statements are
prepared on a going concern basis uniess management either intends to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Group's losses aggregated to AED 6,907,631 its current llabilities exceeded its current
assets by AED 42670,026. Further, the following subsidiaries of the Group have
accumulated losses and net deficit in their equity funds:

(i} Sunroofs Enviro Solar Energy Systems LLC incurred a loss of AED 1,876,071 for the year
ended 31 March 2025 and at that date its losses aggregated to AED 19,678,095 its current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by AED 27,567 and had a net deficlt of AED 156,720 in
equity funds. Further, the Company is also subject to externally impesed capital
requirements as per provisions of the Article 308 of the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of
2021,

(H CleanMax HO (Thailand) Company limited incurred a loss of AED 197,450 for the vear
ended 31 March 2025 and at that date, the accumulated bosses amounted to AED

4,686,004,

{iil} CleanMax Energy (Thailand) Co Itd. Limited incurred a loss of AED 505,181 for the year
ended 31 March 2025, and at that date, the accumulated losses amounted to &ED
1,436,616 its current [@bilities exceeded its current assets by AED 59,719,753,

These events or conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continve as a going concem. However, the
shareholder has committed to continuing the operations of the Group and agreed to
provide angoing financial support to enable the Group to discharge its liabiFties as and
when they fall due. Accordingly, these consolidated financial statements have been

prepared on a going concern basis.

Adoption of new International Financial Reporting Standards

Stondards, emendments, improvements and interpretations effective for the current year
The following standards, amendments, improvements and interpretations which becama
effective for current period, did not have any significant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements:
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e}

Amendments to 1AS 7 and IFRS 7 — Supplier Finance Arrangement;

Amendments to 1AS 1 Presentation of Financlal Statements ralating to Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Mon-Current;

Amendments to [AS 1 — Non-current Liabilities with Covenants;

Amendments to IFRS 16 — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback;

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 - Supplier Finance Arrangement.

New and revised IFRS3 in isiue but not yet effective and not early adopted

The following standards, amendments, improvements and interpretations that are
assessed by management as likely to have an impact on the consolldated financial
statements, have been issued by the [ASE prior to the date the consalidated financial
statements were authorsed for issue, but have not been applied in these consolidated
financial statements as their effective dates of adoption are for future accounting periods,

Amendments to A5 21 — Lack of Exchangeabifity (1 January 2025):

Amendments to IFRS 10 and |1AS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Ventura. The amendments address the conflict between IERS
10 and IAS 28 in dealing with the loss of control of a subsidiary that is sold to an
associate or a joint venture (The IASE postponed the effective date of this amendment

indefinitely - Early adoption is permitted);

Amendments to the 5ASB [Sustainability Accounting Standards Board) standards to
enhance their International applicability (1 January 2025);

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Firancial Instruments
(Amendments to IFRS 3 Financial Instruments and IFRS 7) {1 January 2026);

Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent Electricity (Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7)
{1 January 2026);

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements (1 January 2027);

IFRS Accounting Taxonomy 2023 — Update 1 International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model
Rules, Supplier Finance Arrangements and Lack of Exchangeability (Effective date not
yet decided|;

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability {1 January 2027);

IFRS Accounting Taxonomy 2023 - Update 2 Common Practice for Financial Instruments,
General Impravements and Technology Update (Effective date not yet decided)|.

Functional and presentation currency

Although the functional currencies of the Parent company and its subsidiaries are the local
currency of the country of domiclle in which they operate, the consclidated financial
statements are presented in UAE Dirhams [AED) which is considered as the Group's

FEpOorting Currency.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The material accounting policies adopted, and which have been consistently applied, are as

follows:

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The cost less estimated residual value, where material, is depreciated
from the date the asset is available for use until it is derecognised, using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Right-of-use assets 5 - 25 years
Solar eguipment 25 years
Furniture and fixturas 5 years
Office equipmeant 5 years
Tools and equipment 5 years

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any impalrment losses and is not depreciated.
This will be depreciated from the date the relevant assets are ready for use.

The Group has presented right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets under proparty, plant and aquipment [Refer notes 4(q} and 7].

Subsequent costs ane included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset as appropriate only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Group and such cost can be measured reliably. Such cost
includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment. When significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly. The carrying amount of replaced parts is derecognised.

All ather repairs and maintenance costs are charged to profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurrad.

An assessment of depreciation method, useful fives and residual values s undertaken at
each reporting date and, where material, if there is a change in estimate, an appropriate
adjustment i made to the depreciation charge.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying

amaount. These are recognised within ‘other Incomefadministrative expenses’ in profit or

loss.
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k)

c)

Irtamgible asaats
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Customer contracts are amortised using the straight-line method over lts estimated ussful

life of 25 years.

An assessment of amortisation method and useful lives s undertaken at each reporting date
and, where material, if there & a change in estimate, an appropriate adjustment is made to
the amortisation charge.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the
graup's share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary, associate and joint
venture as of the date of the acquisition. Goodwill on acguisitions of subsidiaries is included
in ‘intangible assets’. Separately recognised goodwill Is tested annually for impairment and
carried at cost less accumulated impalrment losses. Impairment losses on goodwll| are not
reversed. Goodwill on acguisitions of associates and joint ventures is incleded in
Investment in associates/joint ventures' and s tested for impairment as part of the overall
balance, Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment
testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose, identified according to operating segment. Goodwill impairment reviews are
undertaken apnually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances Indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the recoverable
amourit, which is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and Is not subsequently reversed.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (excluding goodwill)

At each reporting date, the management reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those ascets have
suffered an impairment loss. if any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
assel is estimated in order to determing the extent of the impairment loss if any, Whera it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an Individual asset, the acguirer
estimates the recoverable amaunt of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount & the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-In-use. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset,
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d)

If the recaverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unlt) Is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit} is reduced to its
recoverable amount, An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease,

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit] in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amaount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss i treated as a revaluation increase.

Investment in associates

Investments where the Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding between 20% and 50% of the share capital of the investee
company, are treated as associates and accounted for under the eguity method of
accounting stating the investment initially at cost/fair value and adjusted for the Group's
share of the changes in net assets of the investee company after the date of acquisition, and
for any impairment in valee,

Investments in joint arrangements
Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint aperations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Such investments are treated as joint ventures and accounted under the equity method of
accounting stating the inmvestment initially at cost and adjusted fer the Group's share of the
changes in net assets of the investee company after the date of acquisition, and for any
impairment in value,
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)

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the eguity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resuliing from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilties and contingent liabilities assumed in 3 business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree on an acguisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expansed as incurred.

If the business combination Is achieved in stages, the carrying value of the acquirers
previously held equity interest in the acquiree, on the acquisition date, is re-measured to fair
value at that date; any gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are recognised in

profit or |oss,

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability Is recognised in accordance with IERS 9 either in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that Is classified as
equity is not re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The exces of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identiflable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of
consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interast
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired In the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is arrived at using

the Weighted Average Cost (WAC) and comprises invoice value plus applicable landing
charges less discounts. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price less any
estimated cost of completion and disposal.

Share premium

The amount received in excess of the par value of equity shares has been classified a5 share
premium under equity. Further, the transaction coste relating to additional shares issues
deducted from the share premium under equity.
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k)

Share application maney
The amount received as application money for issuance of equity shares in future has been

classified as share application money under equity, Further, the transaction costs relating to
additional shares issues deducted from the share application under equity.

Staff benefits

The Group provides staff end-of-service benefits to its non-UAE national employees as per
the applicable local laws. The entitiement to these benefits is based on the employees’ last
drawn basic salary and length of services which is accrued over the period of employment.
Provision for staff end-of-services bensfits are disclosed as non-current liahitity.

Provision is also made for employees’ entitlement to annual leave and air fare for ligible
employeas as per the policy of the Group. Provision relating to annual leave and air fare js
disclesed as current lisbility as employees are entitled to redeem these benefits at any paint

of time after the reporting period.

Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve is created by appropriating 5% of the profit of Sunroofs Enviro Solar
Energy Systems LLC {the "subsidiary”) as required by UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, The
shareholder may resclve to discontinue such deduction when the reserve totals 50% of the
paid-up share capital. The reserve is not available for distribution except as provided in the
Federal Law. During the year, no transfer of statutory reserve has been made on account of
loss incurred by the subsidiary,

Revenue recognition

The Group Is in the business of solar energy systems & components trading and power
Beneration, transmission & distribution equipment, electrical fitting contracting, solar
energy system installation, sale of solar power and engaged In production, assembly,
distribution and management services to build a power plant.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the control of the goods or
services is transferrad to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or servicas.

The Group recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model as
sot out in IFRS 15;

1. Identify the contracts with customers: A contract is defined as an agreement batween
two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the
criteria for every contract that must be met,
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2. Identify the performance cbligations in the contract: & performance obligation is a
promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer,

3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price |s the amount of consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods
of services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

4. Adocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a
contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Group will allocate the
transaction price to each pedformance obligation in an smount that depicts the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each

performance obligation.

3. Recognise revenue when |or as) the Group satisfies 2 performance obligation at a point
in time or aver time,

The Group satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the
following criteria is met:

= The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group's performance as the Group performs; or

* The Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced; or

* The Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date,

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is
recognized at the polnt in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied, The Group is
required 1o assess each of its contracts with customers to determine whether performance
obligations are satisfied over time or at a point In time in order to determine the appropriate
method of recognising revenue,

Trading income
The Group has concluded that revenue from trading of energy related goods should be
recognised at a point in time when the control of the asset is transferred to the customer,

generally on delivery of the goods.
Rendering of services

The Group has concluded that revenue from rendering of services should be recognised over
time using input method,
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Sale of energy
Revenue from the supply of energy is recognised on the basis of electricity provided during
the year on an accruals basis with reference to the meter readings.

Lontract assets represents the energy Income earned but not billed to the clients.

Construction cantracts
Contract revenues are recognised over a period of time, based on the stage of completion of

the contract activity. Revenue is measured based on the proportion of contract costs
incurred for satisfying the performance obligation to the total estimated contract costs.

Contract revenues are recognised based on the stage of completion of the contract activity.
Revenue is measured based on the proportion of contract costs Incurred for satisfying the
performance obligation to the total estimated contract costs, there being a direct
relationship between the input and the productivity. Claims are accounted for as income
when accepled by the customer,

Expected loss, if any, on contracts are recognised as expense in the period in which It is
foreseen, irrespective of the stage of completion of the contract.

Contract maodifications are accounted for, when additions, deletions or changes are
approved either to the contract scope or contract price. Accounting for modifications of
Contracts involves assessing whether the services added to an existing contract are distinet
and whether the pricing is a standalone selling price. Services added that are not distinct are
accounted for on & cumulative catch-up basis, while those that are distinct are accounted for
prospectively, either as & separate contract, if the additional services are priced at the
standalone selling price, or as a termination of the existing contract and creation of a new
contract if not priced at the standalone selling price.

Contract costs
Contract costs comprise costs incurred to fulfil a contract that meet all of the following

criteria:

= The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract that the entity can

specifically identify:

* The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will be used in satisfying (or in

continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in the future; and

#  The costs are expected to be recovered under the terms of the contract with the

customer.
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o)

Costs that relate directly to a contract [or a specific anticipated contract) include any of the
following:

= Direct laber salaries and wages of employees who provide the promised services directly
to the customer;

* Direct materials used in providing the promised services to a customer;

&  Allocations of costs that relate directly to the contract or to contract activities, including
costs of contract management and supervision, insurance, and depreciation of toals and
equipment used in fulfiling the contract:

* Coststhat are explicitly chargeable to the customer under the contract;

=  Other costs that are incurred only because Group entered into the contract such as
payments to subcontractors.

Depiction of a Group's performance might be to recognise revenue at an amount egual to
the cost of a good used to satisfy a performance ohligation if the Group expects at contract
inception that all of the following conditions would be met:

The good is not distinct,

® The customer is expected to obtain control of the good significantly before receiving
services related to the good.

= The cost of the transferred good is significant relative to the total expected costs to
completely satisfy the performance cbligation.

= The Group procures the goods from a third party and is not significantly invelved in
designing and manufacturing the goods.

Contract assets
A Lontract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to

the customer. If the Group performs by transferring poods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised
from the earned comsideration that is conditional. The contract assets are transferred to
receivable when the rights become unconditional.

Contract liabilities
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the

Group has received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability Is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
lizbilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract,
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Interest income
Interest income is recognised as the Interest accrues wsing the effective interest method,

unger which the rate used exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Leases

As o lessee
The Group has taken solar equipment and rooftop installation on lease. Rental contracts are

typically made for fixed periods of 5 to 25 years but may have extension options. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of differant terms and
conditions. The lease arrangements do not Impose any covenants, however leased asset is
not used as security for borrowing purposes.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the date the underlying asset is available for use.
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, bess any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any reimbursement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets

ineludes:

= the amount of the initial measurement of lease lability;
® any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease ncentives

rcEived;

* any initial costs and
= restoration.costs.

Unless the Group is reascnably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of
the lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basls
ower the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets are
subject to impairment.

Leose fiobilities
The Group recognises lease lizbilities at the commencement date of the lease. The lease

labilities are measured at the net present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include:

= fixed payments |incleding Insubstance fixed payments), less any lease incentives

recetable;

= variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;
= amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantess;
* the exercise price of a purchase optien reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group;

and
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& payments of penalties for terminating the fease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exerclsing the option © terminate.

The Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate in calculating the presant
value of lease payments and uses the incremental borrowing rate at the commencement
date of the lease if the profit rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. Further,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in
the lease term, & change in the In-substance lease payments or a change in the assessment
to purchase the underlying asset.

Each lease payment ks allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost s
charged to profit or loss over the lease period o0 8s o produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the Bability for each period.

The Group leases office premises. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of
12 months but may have extension options. Lease terms are negotiated on an Individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions, The leaze arrangements do
not impose any covenants, however leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing

PuUrposes,

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e.,
those leases that have a ease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
da not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on shomt-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, bank current accounts, bank deposits free of
encumbrance with a maturty date of three months or less from the date of deposit and
highly liguid investments with a maturity date of three months or less from the date of
investment that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to

an insignificant risk of changss in vakue,
Forelgn currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated inlo UAE Dirhams at the rate of exchange

ruling on the date of the transactions.

Monetary assets and llabilities expressed in foreign currencies are translated into UAE
Dirhams at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date.
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Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are taken to profit or loss except
for foreign currency translation differences arising on account of presentation of assets and
liabilities of subsidiaries for consolidation purposes, which are included in shareholdar's
funds.

The transiation of financial statements of foreign subsidiaries into AED i performed for
consolidated statement of financial position account using the exchange rate in effect at the
reporting date and for revenue and expenses using the average exchange rate for the
period. The exchange differances arising on the translation are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred
except those that are attributable to the aequisition and construction of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its intended use {“qualifying asset™)
Such borrowing costs are capitallsed as part of the related gualifying asset up to the date the
quakifying asset s ready for use.

Provizions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligathon (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the reporting date taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flow
estimated to settle the present obligation, it's carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows,

When some or all of the economic benefits required o settle a provision are expected to be
recovered frorm a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of receiable can be measured reliably.

iContingencies and commitments

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements, They are
disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying econemic benefits is
remoie. A-contingent asset is not recognised in the consolidated financial statements but
dizsclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is prabable.
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Value added tax

As per the Federal Decree-Law No. (08) of 2017, Value Added Tax (VAT), is charped at 5%
standard rate or D% (as the case may be| on every taxable supply and deemed supply made
by the taxahle person,

The Group charges and recovers Value Added Tax (VAT) on every taxable su pply and
deemed supply, in accordance with the applicable commercial VAT laws. Irrecoverable VAT
for which the Group cannot avail the credit is charged to the relevant expenditure category
incleded in costs of non-current assets. The Group files its VAT returns and computes the
payable tax {which i output tax less input tax) for the allatted tax periods and deposit the
same within the prescribed due dates of filing VAT return and tax payment. VAT receivable
and VAT payable are offsat and the net amount Is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position as the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and has the intention to settle the same on net basks,

Income and deferred tax

Tax expense for the period comprises of current income tax and deferred tax. Current tax Is
measured by the amount of tax expected to be paid to the federal tax authorities on the
taxable profits after considering tax allowances and exemptions and applying the applicable
tax rates and laws, Deferred tax is recognised on the temporary differences between the
accounting base and the tax base for the period and guantified using the tax rates and tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised for non-deductible and taxable temporary differences arising
between the tax base of assets and Rabilities and their carrying amount In the consolidated
financial statements, except when the deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability In a transaction that is not 2 husiness combination and
affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax |losses can be utifised. Deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Current tax and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally

enforceable right to set off the recognised amount and there is an intention to settle the
asset and Hability on a net basis,
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z)

2a)

Pravision for taxation

Provision for tax is made as per the local tax regulations applicable for the current
assessment year on the basis of taxable profits of the project office in India as computed by
independent qualified tax consultant. Any tax liability that may arise in future on completion
of pending tax assessment relating to earlier years are not expected to be material and
would be paid for and accounted in these consalidatad financial statements in the year in
which the assessments are completed

Promotional privileges

Subsidiaries in Thailand has been granted promotional privileges for production of solar
rooftop power under the Investment Promotion Act as approved by the Board of
Investment. Under these privileges, the subsidiary has recelved exemption from certain
taxes and duties as detailed in the certificate, including exemption from corporate income
tax from the amounts not exceeding 100% of capital Investment excluding cost of land and
working capital for a period of B years from the date of the first revenue earmed (17 August
2020}, The details of promotion certificates are as follows:

Promaotion certificate number Promotion certificate date
62-1314-1-00-1-0 28 Nowvemnber 2014
B2-1228-1-00-1-0 15 November 2021
65-1534-1-00-1-0 2 December 2022
65-1554-1-00-1-0 & 65-1567-1-00-1-0 14 December 2022
GE-1577-1-00-1-0 7 February 2024
£6-0704-1-00-1-0; 66-0705-1-00-1-0 & 66-0706-1-00-1-0 29 May 2024
67-0137-1-00-1-0 25 January 2025
a7-0F9z-2-00-1-0 19 April 2024

G 7-0B870-2-00-1-0 26 April 2024
B7-0807T-2-00-1-0 30 April 2024
By-08396-2-00-1-0 30 April 2024
G7-1864-2-00-1-0 29 Septermnber 2024

Currant versus non-current classification
The Group presents assets and lizbilities in the consolidated statement of financlal position

based on current/non-current classification.

An asset s current when it is:
* Expectzd to be reallsed or intended to be seld or consumed in the normal operating
cycle.
s Held primarily for the purpose of trading.
s Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period. or,
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zh)

« Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified a8 non-current,

A liability iz current when:

® |t is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle.

s |tis held primarily for the purpose of trading.

® |t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period. or,

® There is no right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current,

Financial instruments

Classification

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amoertised cost; fair value
through other comprehensive income = debt investment; fair value through other
comprenensive income = equity investment; or fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial assets’
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them.

In arder for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amartised cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are “solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPIf' on the principal amount outstanding. This
assessment is referred Lo as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrumental lavel,

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its
financial assets In order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cashflows, selling the financial assets, or
both.

Financial liabilities are classified as financial Eabilities at fair valve through profit or logs or at
amortised cost. The Group determines the classification of Its financial liabilities at initial
recognition,

Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrurment. Regular purchases and
sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset.
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Derecognition

Financial assets are de-recognised when, and only when,
®*  The contractual rights to receive cash flows expire or
* The Group has transferred its rights to recelve cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under & ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either
(3} the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or
{b) the Group has neither transferred nor retalned substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset,

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when, and only when, they are extinguished i.e. when
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired,

Measurement

A financial asset (unless it is & trade recelvable without a significant financing component
that is initially measured at the transaction price} Is initially measured at fair value plus, for
an item not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable te its acquisition, Transactions costs of financial assets carried at fair value

thraugh profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

The following accounting policdes apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets
and liabilities.,

Financiol assets of amortised cost
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised
cost bess impairment loss and deferred income, if any using the effective interest method.

1. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to

collect contractual cash flows; and
2. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise to cash flows on specified dates that
are solely payments of principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subseguently measured at fair value.

Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and Impairment are recognised in profit
or loss, Ay gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

The financial assets at amortised cost comprise of trade and ather receivables, other
financial assets, due from a related party and cash and cash equivalents,

Finaneial liohilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method or at fair value throusgh profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities at amortised cost comprize of current and non-current borrowings, loans
from sharehoider, trade and other payables, lease Habilities {current and non-current) and

due to a related party.

Impoirment of financial assets
The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses for investments in all debt

instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss, expected credit Insses are based an
the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows fram the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

Loss allowances are measured on either of the following basis:

— 12-month expected credit losses: expected credit losses that result from possible default
events within 12 months after the reporting date; and

- Lifetime expected credit losses: expected credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of 2 financial instrument.

The Group measures the loss allowance at an amount egual to lifetime expected credit

losses, except for the following which are measured as 12-month expected credit Insses:

— Bank balances, other receivable, due from a related party and other financial assets, for
which credit risk (e, the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the finandial
Instrument| has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets
al an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. The Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating expected credit losses. The Group does not track changes in credit
risk. but instead recognized a loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit losses at
each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic ervironment.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has Increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Group considers
reasanzble and supportive information that is relevant and available without undiie cost ar
effort, This incledes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Graup’s histarical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward looking

information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has Increased significantly if itis
maore than 90 days past due,
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The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:
The customer 5 unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security {if any is held); or

— The financial asset is more than 360 days past due.

The maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amaortised
cost are credit-impaired, A financial asset is “credit-impaired” when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
eccurred.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assat.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reparted in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settie on a net basis, or realise the asset and

setile the liability simultanegusly,

Equity

Share capital is recorded at the value of proceeds recelved towards interest in share capital
of the Parent company,

Falr value measurement
The Group discloses the fair value of financial instruments measured at amortised cost,

The fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The falr
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the Rability takes place either:

® Inthe principal market for the asset or liability or
e In the absence of 3 principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The fair value of an asset or a Rability is measured using assumptions that the market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that the market
participants act in their best economic interests,
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5. JUDGMENTS EMPLOYED IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Following are the judgments made in applying accounting policies that affect the
application of the Group's accounting policies and the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

Classification of financial assets
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them.

Impairment
At each reporting date, management conducts an assessment of property, plant and

equipment to determine whether there are any indications that they may be impaired. In
the absence of such indications, no further actlon is taken. If such indications do exist, an
analysis of each asset is vndertaken to determine Its net recoverable amount and, IF this is
below its carrying amount, 3 provision is made.

The Group applies expected credit loss model to measure loss allowance in case of financial
assets on the basis of 12-month expected credit losses or Lifetime expected credit losses
depending on credit risk characteristics and how changes in economic factors affect
expected credit losses, which are determined on & probability-weighted basis.

Leases
Determining the lease term
The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with

any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be
exercised, or any periods coverad by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably
certain not to be exercised.

The Group has the option, under some of its leases to lease the assets for additional years.
The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it Is reasonably certain to exercize the
option bo renew. The Group considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive
for it to exercise the renewal, After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the [ease
term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its contral and
affects its ability to exercise (or not to exercite) the aption to renew.

Discounting of lease payments
The lease payments are discounted using the Group's incremental borrowing rate (*1IBRY],
which 5 equivalent to 6% to 7.77%, due to the absence of implicit rates in the lease

contracts.

Management has applied judgments and estimates to determine the IBR at the transition
dale, using borrowing rates that certaln financial institutions would charge the Group
against financing the different types of assets It leases over different terms and different
ranges of values. 1BR is further adjusted for Group's specific risk, term risk and underlying
asset risk. Majority of the leases are present in the UAF. and accordingly no adjustment
for the economic environmaent was deemed required.
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Investments in subsidiaries

Management considers that it has de-facto conirol over Cleanmax Engineering (Thailand)
Company Limited even though it does not hold 100% voting rights. The investment is made
by the Parent company and partly through one of the legal entities in Thailand, who is
acting as a nominee shareholder on behalf of the Parent company. There is no history of
other shareholders forming a group to exercise their votes collectively.

Management considers that it has de-facto control over CleanMax Alpha LeaseCo FZC0,
Dukai even though the Company holds 50% of the share capital in Cleanmax Alpha, it is abla
to exercise control over its financial and operating policies by virtue of contral over board of
directors. The investment Is made by the Parent company and partly through one of the
legal entitles in Dubai, U.AE, who is acting as a nominee shareholder on behalf of the
Parent company. There is no history of other shareholders forming a group to exercise their
vates collectively.

Investments in joint ventures

Management considers that it has joint control over Kanoo Cleanmax Renewables Asset Co
W.LL and Kanoo Cleanmax Renewables W.L.L wherein it holds 50% of the voting rights,
Based on the contractual arrangements, unanimous consent is required from all the parties

to the arrangement for all relevant activities for both entities.

The Kanoo Cleanmax Renewables Asset Co W.LL and Kanoo Cleanmax Renewables W.LL
has been structured as a limited liability companies and provides the parties to the
arrangement with rights to the net assets of the limited liability company under the
arrangemeant. Consequently, the investment is classified as a joint venture.

Recognition of revenue and allocation of transaction price

Identification of performance obligations

The Group determined that the sale of equipment and installation services are provided a5
a single component to custemers and accordingly it becomes single performance obligation
in respect of the services being performed. The equipment and installation are highly
interdependant or highly interrelated as the Group will not be able to transfer the
equipment if the customer declined installation services.

Determine timing of satisfoction of perfarmance obligotion

Contract revenue is recognised over time as performance obligations are fulfilled in
accordance with IFRS 15 —Revenus from Contracts with Customers, The timing of revenue
recognition is subject to judgement surrounding the costs expected to be incurred in
cempleting the work, as revenue on contracts is recognised on a percentage completion

biasis.
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a. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
Foliowing are the key assumptions made concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and lizbilities within the next financial vear,
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis and are consistent with the Group’s risk management
Revisions to estimates are recognised prospectivaly,

Carrying values of property, plant and equipment

Residual values are assumed to be zero unless a reliabke estimate of the current value can be
obtained for simiar assets of ages and conditions that are reasonably expected to exist at
the end of the assets’ estimated useful lives.

Impalrment
Assessments of net recoverable amounts of tangible and intangible assets and goodwill are
based on assumpticons regarding future cash flows expected to be recelved from the related

assets.

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowance for financial assets is based on assumptions about the risk of default and
expected loss rates. The management uses judgement In making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the Impalrment calculations based on the past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward locking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in note 4{zb).

Inventory provisions

Management regularly undertakes a review of the Group's imentory, stated at AED
4,698,943 (previous year AED 4,583,066) in order to assess the likely realization proceeds,
taking into account purchase and replacement prices, technological changes, age, likely
obsolescence, the rate at which goods are being sold and the physical damage. Based on the
assessment assumptions are made as to the level of provisioning required.

Income tax
Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income tax, including the
amount expected to be paid or recovered in connection with uncertain tax positions.

Determination of Acquisition date of CleanMax Alpha LeaseCo FZCO0, Dubal, UAE

Vide the Supplementary and Amendment Agreement dated 1 October 2024, the Company
gained control of the CleanMax Alpha via higher board representation and control over its
financial and operating policies. As a result of which 1 October 2024 is considered as date of
acquisition of Controlling interest in CleanMax Alpha.

Staff end-of-service benefits

The entities in UAE of the Group compute the provision for the liability to staff end-of-service
benefits stated at AED 278,728 (previous year AED 250,608, assuming that all employees
were to leave as of the reporting date. The management is of the opinion that no significant
difference would have arisen had the liability been calculated on an actuarial basis as salary

inflation and discount rates are likely to have approximately equal and opposite effects.
Page 34 af &1



CLEANMAX SOLAR MEMNA FZCO

MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Deferred tax

Deferred lax ls recorded on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts, at the rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. The ultimate realisation of deferred tax assets is dependent
upon the generation of future taxable profits during the periods in which those temporary
differences and tax loss carry forwards become deduectible. The Group considers the
expected reversal of deferred tax Kabilities and projectad future taxable income In making
this assessment. The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realisable, however,
could be reduced in the near term If estimates of future taxable income during the carry
forward period are reducad,

Staff end-of-service benefits

The entities in UAE of the Group compute the provision for the liability to staff end-of-service
benefits stated at AED 278,728 (previous year AED 230,608), assuming that all employees
were to leave as of the reporting date. The management is of the opinion that no significant
difference would have arisen had the liability been calculated on an actuarial basis as salary
inflation and discount rates are likely to have approximately equal and opposite efiects.

Project cost to complete estimates

Al the end of each reporting period, the Group is required to estimate costs to complete
contracts. Estimating costs to complete on such contracts requires the Group to make
estimates of future costs to be incurred, based on work to be performed beyond the end of
the reporting period. The Group uses intermal quantity surveyors together with project
managers to estimate the costs to complete for construction contracts. Factors such as
changes in material prices, labour costs, defects liability costs and other costs are included in
the contract cost estimates based on best estimates of the contract progress and remaining
works at the year-end. These estimates also include the cost of potential claims by
contractors and the cost of meeting other contractual obligations to the customers.

Contract variations and claims

Variations orders are accounted for prospectively based on the nature and price of
additional products and services requested through the variation orders. During the year
ended 31 March 2025, no amount of claim recognised as part of the revenue {previous year
AED Nil).

The seliing price includes variable consideration {including claims, re-measurable contract
values and discounts) in the transaction price to which It expects 1o be entitied from the
inception of the contract. The amount of variable consideration is restricted to the extent
that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognized will not cccur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

Going conoem assessment

The Group’s losses aggregated to AED 6,907,631 its current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by AED 42,670,026, Motwithstanding this fact, the consolidated financlal statements of
the Group have been prepared on a going concemn basis as the management of the Group
believes that the future operations of the Group will generate sufficlent profits and
cashflows, the shareholder has resolved to continue its operations in the General Meeting
bl
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This represents the right-to-use of solar equipment and rooftop installation on lease from &
to 25 years located in Thailand, The assets are under the books of Cleanmax Energy
(Thailand) Co. Ltd and Cleanmax IHQ (Thailand} Company Limited.

Capital work-in-progress relates to the construction of solar equipment, and the capital
commitments associated with these projects are disclosed in Note 38. Capital work-in-
progress of AED 24,376,690 has been pledged as security against borrowings (refer note
22).

solar equipment with a cost of AED 212,699,503 (previous year AED £0,763,209) and a net
book value of AED 186,050,869 (previous year AED 57,657.0%4), has been pledged as
security against bank borrowings {refer note 22).

Customer contracts represent the fair value of Customer Contracts under Multi-period
Excess Earnings method ("MPEEM method”) of cost AED 28,786,235 (previous year AED Nil)
in accordance with measurement principles of IFRS 3, resulting from the acquisition of
control over CleanMax Alpha LeaseCo FICO (note B). Amortisation charge for year
amounted to AED 575,725 {previous year AED Nil).

GDODWILL

Acquisition of controlling interest in CleonMax Alpha LeaseCo FZC0, Dubai ("CleanMax
Alpha")

Vide the Supplementary and Amendment Agreement dated 1 October 2024, the Company
gained control of the CleanMax Alpha via higher baard representation and control over its
financial and operating policies. As a result of which 1 October 2024 is considered as date of
acquisition of Controlling interest in CleanMax Alpha. After gaining control, the Company
further increased its stake in CleanMax Alpha to 50% by acquiring additional equity fram
non-controlling shareholders,

The recognition and measurement of goodwill upen gaining contral of CleanMax Alpha s as
fallows:

1 Octobar 2024
AED
Fair value of assets of CleanMax Alpha (induding Identifiabla
asEEts] 159,657,880
Fair value of Rabilities of Cleaniax Alpha 79,083,427
Fair value of nat Identilied assels of Cleaniax Alpha {A-8) 20,574,453
% of Compary's interest in Cleanbdax Alpha before gaining the
cantr 40.20%
¥ of Non-controlling interest before gaining the control 59.20%
Fair valug per share in Cleanmas Alpha before gaming control 193 665
Fair value af the Company’s shares held in CleanMax Alpha [F=204) 33,507,660
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1 Octobar 2024
AED
Kon-controlling interest in Cleaniax Alpha on the net identifiable ’
net assets, at fair value [C*E) (C6) s
Carrying amaunt of Cormpany's interest in CleanMax Alpha befare
gaming control 27,545,444
Gain on the Company's interest in Clean®ax Alpha at acquisition
date (G -] (G-) 11,961,216
Acquisition-date fair value of Company's interest 39,507,660
Add:  Mon-controdling interest in CleanMax Alpha on the net
identifiable net assats, at fair value 47,700,075
Less: Falr value of net identified asseqs of Jeaniiax Alpha (80,574,453}
Add: Deferred tax llabHity on tax amortization benefit spon
recognition of identifiabde customer contracts [note 74) 1,940,192
Goodwill recognised B8,573.475
Acquisition of additional shares in Cleanmax Alpha
Furchase considaration paid 20,641 961
Man-controlling interest in CleanMax Alpha on the net identifiable
net assets, at fair value 47,700,078
# of Non-contralling intenest at the date of acquisition 59.20%
% of additional shares acquires 8.20%
Proportionate value of non-controlling interest at the date of
acguisition of additional shares [(BSC]*D]) 7,812,850
Amount recognised as other equity &-E 13,226,111
2025 2024
AED AED
INVESTMIENTS
Inwestment in associate
Cleanmax Alpha Leaselo FZC0, Dubai
Share capital 15,685,200 204,000
Fair value adjustment due to loss of control 204,000 15,685,100
Additional investment acouired in current yaar 9,176,000 9,176,000
Share of profit icumulative) 2,481,244 1,342,407
27,546,444 26,407 607
De-recognised of acguisition of contral [Mote 8) (27,548 444) -
- 26,407 607
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() Aggregated summary financlal information for the associate, until its derecognition, is as

follows:;
1.4.2024 1.4.2023
to to
30.9.2024 3132024
AED AED
Assets 130,871,644 130,955,351
Liahilities 79,083,426 81,958,309
Revenue 11,079,705 16,472,578
Prafit 2,791,266 900,802
Met assets 51,788,218 48,996,952
Interest 40.80% 40.20%
Share of profit 1,138,837 353,153
Bl INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE
50% interest in Konoo Cleanmax Renewables Asset
Cir WL L, Bohrain
Share capital at cost 49,573 49,573
Additional irvestments during the year 4,018,515 1,337,182
Share of profit 214,111 29,581
Total (A 4,282,199 1,416,336
5% interest in Kanoo Cleanmax Renewaobles WL
Bohrain -
Share capital at cost 449,579 -
Share of profit 1,961,945 -
Total (B} 2,011,525 -
C]  Totalinvestrnent in joint venture and associate
(A)+ (B 6,293,724 27,823,243
The nature of investments in joint ventures is as follows:
Plame of Joint venturg Principal Country % of shane Hoal
activities of capital hefd  beneficial cwnarship
ALrporatian interest
2095 M4 I3 034
KRR b R i o Renting and aperational
€ W.LL Bahrainl Iraiing of machinery and Bahmain 50 50 &0 S0
aquipment
Rerling and operstanal
Ranoo MﬂWES WLL, hﬁ;‘d m:.:u?m WP | - §

equipment
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(il

Kanoo Cleanmax Renewables Asset Co. W.L.L and Cleanmax Solar MENA FZCO are jointly
confrolled ventures, with egual beneficial interest shared between the venturers under
commercial registration number 153737 7-1, There are no quoted market prices available for

their shares,

Aggregated summary financial information relating to Kanoo Cleanmax Renewables Asset Co
W.LL not adjusted for the proportion of ownership interest held by the Company is as
follows:

Summarised statement of financlial position

2025 2024
AED AED

Mon-current assets
- Property, plant and equipment 12,705 999 2,263,080
- Capital work-In-progress 10,520,130 -
23,316,129 2,263,080

Currant assets

- Trade and ather receivables 2427 886 196,586
= Cash and cash equivalents 099,867 2,819 865
3,427,753 3,016,451
Total assets 26,743 882 5,279,531
Non-current liabilities 146,299 -
Current liabilities 17,888,285 2,476,700
Total liabilities 18,034,584 2,476,700
MNet assets 8,709,298 2,802,831

Summarised statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Revenue 1,164,143 263,300
Direct costs {430,870) (133,118}
Gross profit 733,273 130,208
Administrative expenses {364,214) {71,047)
Mat profit 369,050 59,161

Reconciliation of summarised financial information
A reconciliation of summarised financial information presented to the carrying amount of

investment in joint venture s as follows:

Met assets
Total assets (i) 26,743,882 5,279,531
Total liabilities {if) 18,034,584 2,476,700

(I-i) 8,709,293 2,802,831
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(a]

2025 2024

AED AED
Total revenue 1,164,143 263,326
Total profit 369,059 59,161
Interest in Joint venture (%) 50% =¥k
Interest in Joint venture (AED) 4,354,649 1,416,336
Carrying value 184,530 20,581
Share of comprehensive income (cumulative):
Profit for the year ended 31 March 2024 29,581 -
Profit for the year ended 31 March 2025 184,530 -

214,111

During the year, the Company Invested in a joint venture, Kanoo Cleanmax Renewables
W.LL and Cleanrmax Solar MENA FICO. These ventures are jointly controlled, with equal
beneficial interest shared between the venturers under commercial registration number
157376-1, There are no quoted market prices available for thelr shares,

Aggregated summary financial information relating to Kanoo Cleanmax Renewables W.LL
not adjusted for the proportion of ownership Interest bald by the Company is as follows:

Summarised statement of financial position

Mon-current assets

- Property, plant and equipment 7,503 -
Current assets

- Trade and other receivables 17,809,029 -
= [Cash and cash equivalents 807,721 s
Current assets 18,716,750 --
Total assets 18,724,253 -
Equity 4,020,957 o
Current liabilities 14,703,296 -
Total liabilities 18,724,253 -
Met assets 4,020,957 --

summarised statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

2025 2024
AED AED
Revenue 21,488,059 -
Direct costs (17,464,053) -
Gross profit 4,024,006 ™
Administrative expenses (100,115}
Met profit 3,923,891 -
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Reconciliation of summarised financial information
A reconciliation of summarised financial information presented to the carrying amount of
investrment in joint venture is as follows:

2025 2024
AED AED
Net assets
Total assets (i) 18,724,253 -
Total liabilities (i) 14,703,296 -
(i-if) 4,020,957 .
Total revenue 21,488,059 -
Tatal profit 3,923,891 =
Interest in joint venture (%) 50 =
Interest in joint venture (AED) 2,010,473 -
Carrying value'! 1,961,945 -
(@) Share of comprehensive income {cumulative):
Profit far the year ended 31 March 2025 1,361,946 -
iD.  OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Debt instruments at amortised cost
Long-term loan to a related party #! (A} - 13,424 867
Other financial assets at amortised cost:
Margin deposits® 15,565,063 2,380,368
Short-term lsan to related parties™ B} 1,419,005 o
16,984,158 2,380,368
{A) + [B) 16,984,158 15,806,235
Disclosed under:
Mon-current financial assets - 13,424,867
Current financial assets 16,984,158 2,320,368
16,984 158 15,805,235

LE A reconcillation of the movements in the long-term loans to related parties is as follows:

Opening balance 13,424 867 14,924,867
Leans re-paid during the year (13,424,867) (1,500,000}
Closing balance - 13,424 867
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(b

(i}

11.

1Z.

Interest receivables from the above loans amounting to AED nil {previous year AED 841,905)
is classified under other receivables, The loans were unsecured and without fixed repayment
schedule. These loans carry a 6% per annum of interest (previous year 6% per annurm).

Margin deposits represent the following deposits:

- Represents deposits amounting to AED 8,803,822 with Cleanmax Energy Thailand Co Ltd,
are held as security against bankers' letter of guarantes issued by the Group (note 39).

= During the vear, the Cleanmax Alpha availed a new facility from HSBC Bank. Margin
deposits with HSBC bank comprise of deposit of AED £,656,241 which are provided as per
the terms of the bank facility letter (note 22).

A reconciliation of the movernents in the short-term loans to related parties is as follows:

2025 2024
AED AED
Loan provided during the year' 1,419,095 -

These include a loan of AED 152,731 extended to Kanoo Cleanmax Rerewables Asset Co.
W.LL, a joint venture company. The loan does not have a fived repayment schedule and
carries an interest rate of 6% per annum. Additionally, another loan amounting to AED
1,266,364, has been provided to Yusuf Bin Ahmed Kanoo Co. Limited, a joint venture partner,
which is unsacured and does not have a fived repayment schedule.

Interest receivables from the above loans amounting to AED 147 (previous year AED nil} are
included n other recenables.

2025 2024
AED AED
INVENTORIES
Project materials 4,698,943 4,583 D66
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables 10,455,576 6,165,866
Less: Allowance for excepled cradit losses (340,445) -
10,119,131 6,165,866
Deposits 346,657 750,741
Other receivables 58,953 979,401
10,524, 751 7,896,008

A retonciliation of the movements in the allowance tor expected credit losses for trade
receivables is as follows:
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Provision on account of acquisition of contraol of

CleanMax Alpha [note 8)
Fravision made during the year

2025 2024
AED AED
71,335 -
268,110 =

This infarmation about credit exposure is disclosed In note 37,

The Company does not hold any collateral against trade recelvables |previous year AED Nil).

13, OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments
Current tax receivables
Advance for goods and services
Staff advances
VAT receivable {nat)

14. RELATED PARTIES

1B3 BBE 345,543
1,354,751 A87,534
1,996,419 473,699

29,485 52,983

202,590 2,042 506

3,767,143 3,352,271

The Group enters into transactions with entities that fall within the definition of a related
party as contained in International Accounting Standard 24. The management considers such
transactions to be in the normal course of business and are at prices determined by the

managament.

Related parties comprise the shareholder, associate, joint ventures, directors/key managerial

personnel and other related party.

At the reporting date, significant balances with related parties were as follows:

Shareholder MAssocate lgint
[mote 3(al]  wenture

AED AED AED
Long-term foans fo a
ralated party = = 4
—  13424.BRT
Short-term loan 0 a
related parky - - 152,731
Inenzst s 4 - 6293724

— 407607 L416336

Directorfiey  Other related

management
persannel
AED
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Parent Assoclate Josit Direcorkey
company  [note®(a]]  wenture  manapement

personned
AED AED AED AED
Indudad in trade
and oiher
recelvablas - - 147 -
- 3,B655E7D - i
Included in trade
and other payahlas 330,534 o i L
Comtract aassary . al AR il
= 177545 s =
Contract liabilitie: = = = =
= 051,838 s !
Cue from a redated
party - = 5 Z
— 3495655 : =
Du= to 2 relared
pary 1,872 128 - = z
3 B23. 884 - - =
Lians fram
sharehalder 27704, BT e " =
28,121 857 - - o
Guarantee received 163, 209 805 = =
54,041,199 = E i
Prowviion for stafi
end-of-semnice
benefits - - = 118 355
i == - 85,172

Othe=r
redated

party
AED

Tatal
225
AED

147

330,534

1,972,728

27,104,637

163,309,805

118,258

Total
20124

AED

4,655,800

37T 55

2,051,528

3495,655

4,823,804

A8, 120L857

54,041,159

Be.1n

All balances except guarantee received are unsecured and are expectad to be settied in cash.
Repayments and other terms are set out in notes 8, 9, 10, 21 and 37.

significant transactions with related parties during the year were as fallows:

Parent Associata Director oy
[note Hal] management

persennel
AED ALD AED

InCiugad In revenue = - -
- 25115112 -

Inclisded incost of wales
{imciudad in porchases) 0,523,334 - =
4,730,703 - s
Directod's remuneration = - 477,050
- - 339,600
Wanagament fee Income - 218,000 -
interast incomea ea =

94,505 -
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AED
3,029,184

3,029,194

8,523,324

477,050

218,000

Total
2024

AED

25,115,112

4,230,293
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Farent Azpatiate Director/hey Joint Total
[mota@(sl] mansgement  venture 2025
personnel
AED AL AED AED AED
Share of prefit fram |aint
wantura - - . 2,146,475 2146475
- - - 79,561
Financa costs 3,163,450 . = - 8163450
1,516 088 - - o
Ewpansas recharped to
a relatad pary 75,000 - A r 75 000
125,006 L iz =
Expensed recharged from
4 related party =a - -
183,784 - -

Tatal

25,501

1,516,088

125,000

185, 7E4

The Group also receives funds from/provides funds to related parties as working capital

tacilities at as agreed rates.

Certain administrative related services are availed from a related party as per agreed rates.

2025 2024
AED AED
15. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITES
Contract assets relating to costs incurred
to fulfil & contract 4,127,161 7,158,311
Dischosed as:
Current contract assets 4,127,161 7,158,311
Contract liabilities 4,076,074 2,088,624
Disclosed as:
Current contract liabilities 4,076,074 2,689,624
15, CASH AND CASH EQUIWVALENTS
Cash on hand 5477 7,134
Bank balances in current accounts 27,665,034 9,893,838
27,670,511 9,900,972

Balances with banks are assessed to have low credit risk of default since these banks are
highly regulated by the central banks of the respective countries. Accordingly, management
of the Group estimates the loss allowance on balances with banks at the and of the
reporting year at an amount equal to 12-month ECL. Nene of the balances with banks at the
end of the reporting year are past due and taking Into account the historical default
experience and the current credit ratings of the bank, the management of the Group have
assessed that there is no impairment, and hence have not recorded any loss allowances on

these balances.
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2025 £024
AED AED
17.  SHARE CAPITAL
Isxued and paid up:
28,627 shares of AED 1,000 each [previous year
24,830 shares of AED 1,000 each) 28,627,000 24,830,000
Name No. of shares AED
Clean Max Enviro Energy Solutions Private Ltd., India 18,027 24,830,000
al  Dwring the year vide an amendment to the memorandum of assocation, the Company has
increased the share capital by issuance of additional 3,797 shares to CleanMax Enviro Energy
aolutions Private Ltd. The shareholder as at 31 March 2025 and at 31 March 2024 and its
interest as at that date in the share capital of the Company were as follows:
Marme A 31 March 2025 AL 31 March 2024
Mo, of AED %of %ol Mo of AED ¥of %of
Shares holding profit Shares holding. profit
sharing sharing
Cleaniax Emvirg Energy
Solutions Private Ltd. 28,627 28,627,000 100%  100% 24830 24,830,000 100%  100%

18,

(b

19,

IB62T ZBOZT.000 1o00% 1% 24830 24,830,000 100% 100%

2025 2024
AED AED
SHARE PREMIUM™ & 1=
Opening balance 44,192 401 19,830,420
Premiurn on additional shares issued during the year 12,104 806 24,473,361
Transackion costs (54,580) (111,380)
Closing balance 56,202,627 44,192,401

Share premium of AED 44,379,801 (net transaction cost of AED 242,060) arising out of
19,280 shares Issued during the year ended 31 March 2024.

Share premium of AED 12,104,806 (net transection cost of AED 296,640 arising out of
23,077 shares issued during the year ended 31 March 2025.

SHARE APPLICATION MONEY

Opening balance - 14,775,948
Share application money on additional shares™ 21,472,030 -
Allotment of shares - {14,775, 948)

21,472,030 i
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(al

This represents advance subscription received from the shareholkder towards the increase in
share capital. As at reporting date, the legal formalities for issuing of further share capital
were not yet completed, upon completion of the legal formalities, the amount will be
reclagsified to share capital.

Further vide an amendment to the Memaorandum of Association dated 7 April 2025, the
Group has increased the share capital through ssuance of additional of 5,116 shares to
CleanMax Enviro Energy Solutions Private Ltd., thereby completing the allstment of shares to

shareholder.
2025 2024
AED AED
0. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
Cpening balance 2,996 155,996
Addition on account of acguisition of control in
CleanMax Alpha (met of dividends credited and
acguisition of additional stake] {Mote B) 35,805,196 —
Acquisition of minority stake - {153,000
Closing balance 35,898,192 2,996

This represents share of CleanMax Alpha LeaseCo FZCO, Dubai and Cleanmax Englneering

{Thailand] Company Limitad, Thailand.

41,  LOANS FROM SHAREHOLDER

Opening balance 28,121,857 18,365,458
Receipts during the vear (net) - 9,200,000
Interest credited 1,653,332 1,516,088
Interest paid (2,070,552) (959, 719)
Closing balance 27,704,637 28,121,857

(3} These represents interest bearing loans received from the shareholder with a maturity of

one to three years from the date of receipt of loans,

3 months = 1 year 18,093 927 3.426,204
Presented as current liability 18,083,927 3,426,204
1 vear— 3 vears 9,610,710 24 695 BL3
27,704,637 28,121,857
(b} Loans carry interest rate of 6% per annum
Disclosed as:
Mon=current partion 9,610,710 24 B95,653
Current portion 18,093,927 3,426,204
27,704,637 28,121,857
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{a)

(b)

()

LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
Loan from financial institution™
Leans from third party™
Less: Current portion
On loans from third party {note 25)
Oni loan from financial institution [note 25)

Loan from financial Institution:

On the date of acquisition, the balance is
Loan availed during the yvear

Repayment during the yvear

Less: Unamaortised transaction costs

Disclosed as:
Current portion of loans
MNan-current portion of loans

Movement of unamortised transaction costs:
Opening balance on the date of acquisition
fAvailed during the year

Amortised during the year

Closing balance

An analysis by bank of amounts outstanding is as follows:

Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limitad (HSBC) ®

2025
AED

82,708,061
71,189,805

(71,189,805)
(1,883,053}

2024
AED

43,689,542

(2,042,300}

80,915,008

41,647,242

46,329,202
84,770,000
{46,329,202)
(1,971,939)

£3,798,061

1,883,053
20,915,008

82,798,061

582,086
2,099,240
{709,387)

1,971,935

82798 061

The borrowing availed from HSBC is repayable in quarterly instalments. The Company has
enteéred into interest rate swap arrangement for fied interest rate of 6.52% per annum
against floating interest rate of 3-month EIBOR + 2.25% per annum, effective 3 March 2025.

Bank borrowing is secured by

= 50.8% of the Cleanmax Alpha share capital, granted by by Clean Max Enviro Energy
Solutions Private Ltd and Paragon Cleantech Pyt Ltd,
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i}

{d

{e)

Fower Purchase Agreements [("PPA Contracis"} representing at least 70% of the
Borrower's total solar photovoltaie energy capacity.

CleanMax Alpha rights under certain PPA Contracts and the D&M Contract, including
FPA Contracts governed by DIFC law, PPA Contracts governed by English law, and the
D&M Contract governed by DIFC [aw.

CleanMax Alpha eligible assets, meeting specific technical and financial criteria, and
includes the underlying infrastructure, the associated PPA Contracts, and the

relevant insurance policies,
Margin deposits given by the CleanMax Alpha [note 10{b)].

Corporate guarantes by Clean Max Enviro Energy Solutions Private Ltd and Paragon
Cleantech Pyt Ltd.

The bank facilities are subject te certain financial covenants including debt service coverage
ratio, effective 1 May 2025, which is belng cormplied with,

A maturity analysis of borrowings from financial institutions are as follows:

2025 2024
AED AED
0 =1 month - -
1-13 months - -
3 months = 1 year 1,883,053 =
Presented as current liability 1,883,053 -
1 year — 5 years 259,204,002 -
B yaars— T years 51,711,006 -
82,798,061 -
Lang-term loan from a third party:
The movements for loan from the third party is as under:
Opening balance 43,689,542 14,519 493
Loan paid during the period {1,654,703) -
Amount advanced as loan 29,154,966 29,170,049
Closing balance 71,189,805 43,689 547

& A al 31 March Z025, the Cleanmax Energy Thailand Co Ltd.’s bank balances worth AED 9
millicn [previous year: AED 2 million) were used &s collateral for above loans.

Page 50 af &1



CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

3.

[a]

(b)

* On ¥ luly 2023 and 1 September 2023, the Group had entered into a long-term loan
agreement with a lender amounting to AED 18,622,113 and AED 12,486,007, carrying
interest rate of 6.63% and 7.85% per annum respectively. The principal amount and
interest are repayable half-yearly in June and December every year. The last instalment
of both the loans is due in June 2025,

e On 28 June 1023, Parent company (the “Pledgor®) pledged all issued and outstanding
shares of Cleanmax Energy (Thailand] Co., Ltd. to Global Climate Partnership Fund 5.4,
SICAN-5IF. This pledge is a part of security arrangements under the Amendment and
restaterment deed dated 29 June 2022, which amends and restates the facilities
agreements originally dated 19 Juns 2020,

* 0On 19 June 2020 and 21 March 2022, the Group had entered into a long-term loan
agreement for a facility worth AED 6,854,134 and AED 8,740,381, carrying interest rate
of 5.80% and 3.29% per annum respectively, The principal amount and interest are
repayable half-yearly in June and December every year. The last instalment of both the
bans is due in June 2025,

The Group has mortgaged power generation equipment to secure loan from a third party.
[refer note 7{c]].

2025 2024
AED AED
PROVISION FOR STAFF END-OF-SERVICE-BENEFITS
Dpening Balance 250,608 165,567
Pravision for the year ' 100,149 88,705
Paid during the year (72,029) {7.664)
Closing balance™ 278,728 250,608
Provision for the year is as follows:
Provision on account of acquisition of control of
Cleanhiax Alpha [note 8) 10,255 -
Provision made during the year 89,854 -

This Includes AED 20,185 en account of acquisition of control of CleanMax Alpha [note 8],
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2025 2024
AED AED
24, LEASE LIABILITIES
Lease liabilities for long-term lease of solar
equipment and rooftop installation 944,366 1,106,293
Disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:;
Mon-current liabilities 839 728 972,955
Current liabilities 104,638 133,338
944,366 1,106,293
A reconciliation of the movements in the leass labilities s as follows:
At 1 April 1,106,293 =
Addition made during the year 293,434 1,178,991
Finance cost on lease liabilities {note 34) 56,525 45,870
Payments made during the vear {511,936) (118,568
At 31 March 844,366 1,106,293
A maturity analysis of undiscounted lease liabilities is as follows:
-3 manths 39,815 133,338
3 months = 1 year 64,823 -
Presented as current liahilities 104,638 133,338
1 year — 25 yaars 896,253 1,371,262
Total 1,000,891 1,504,600

Reconciliation of undiscounted |ease liabilities to the lease labilities as stated In the

consolidated statement of financial pasition is as follows:

Lease payments due 1,000,891 1,504,600

Less: Finance cost on leases {56,525) (398,307)

Disclosed in the statement of financial position 544,366 1,106,293

25. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Current portion of long-term loans from financial

institutions [note 22) 1,883,053 -

Current portion of long-term loan form third-party

frvcte 22) 71,189,805 2,042,300
73,072,858 2,042,300

it A maturity analysis of total short-term bornowings are as follows;

1 -3 months 71,189, 805 412,127

3 months — 1 year 1,883,053 1,630,173

Total 73,072 858 2,042 300
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(i)

Bank facilities from Mashreq Bank are secured by financial bank guarantee of AED 7,350,000
(previous year AED 7,350,000) received from the parent compasny.

The bank borrowings are subject to certain financial covenants such as minimum monthiy
drcount twmowver routing of AED 300,000, which is being complied with.

2025 2024
AED AED
26 TRADE AMD OTHER PAYABLES
Trade payables 3,121,147 3,743,494
Accruals 7,094, ,E69 6,225,898
Accrued interest 2,589,087 1,015,541
Other payables B4,272 21,564
12,889,375 11,007 897
The entire trade and other payables are due for payment within one year from the reporting date,
An age analysis of trade payables as at the reporting date is as follows:
Mot past due B57,975 978,435
0—1 year 2,263,172 2,765,059
1— 2 year - -
hore than 2 years - ==
3,121,147 3,743 494
27 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advance for goods and services 115,965 241428
8. MANAGEMENT OF CAPITAL

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to ensure that the Group continues as a
going concern and to provide the shareholder with a rate of return on thelr investment
commensurate with the level of risk assumed.

Capital comprises equity funds as presented in the consolidated statement of financial
pesition along with loans from the shareholder, share application, share premium and
amounts due to/from related parties. Debt comprises total amounts owing to third parties,
net of cash and cash equivalents.

The Group is subject to externally imposed capital requirements as per provisions of the
bank facilities availed. Sunroofs Enviro Solar Energy Systems LLC (the subsidiary company)
has accumulated losses exceeding 50% of its share capital, the shareholders of the subsidiary
company have resolved to continue with the operations of the subsidiary company. The
Group has complied with all the capital requirements to which it is subject.

Funds generated from internal accruals together with funds received from a shareholder are
retained in the business according to the business requirements ta maintain the capital at
desired levels.
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29, REVENUE
The Group generates revenue from the transfer of services over time, The disaggregated
revenue from contracts with customers by geographical segments, type of services and
timing of revenue recognition is presented below. The management believes that this best
depicts the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of the Group's revenue and cash flows.

2025 2024
AED AED
Primary geographical segments
- UWAE 19,342,938 38,279,833
= Thailand 11,406,938 11,892,000
- Bahrain 3,029,194 2,766,120
33,779,070 52,937,062
Major good/service lines
Constructionfinstallation projects
= Revenue from projects 8,780,621 44,803,806
Sale of energy and related goods
- Sale of energy 19,662,729 2,953,803
= Trading income 3,029,194 2,766,120
- Larbon income 364,806 146,885
23,056,729 5,866,808
Operation and maintenance
= Dperating maintenance 1,941,720 4,267,398
33,779,070 5,937,962
Timing of revenue recognition
= At a point in time 3,313,397 2,913,005
- Ower time 30,465,673 50,024, 957
33,779,070 52,937,962
30. COST OF SALES
Purchases (Including direct expenses) 17,393,005 41,038,072
Purchase of carbon credits 538,305 6,668
Depraciation and amortisation (note 7) . 7,346,728 2,058,880
25,278,128 43 103,620
31. OTHER INCOME
Credit balances written back 69,178 20927
Foreign exchange gain 111,835 -
Management fee 218,000 -
Piscellansous Income 397,552 128,860
795,566 158,787
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32,

[a]

33.

4,

5.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Staff salaries and benefits'™

Staff end-of-service henefits

Expenszes relating to short-term leases
Commission and referral fees

Legal and professional fees
Recruitment expenses

Travel and conveyance

Depreciation {note 7)

Other expenses

This includes director’s remuneration of AED 477,050 (previous year AED 329,600).

INTEREST INCOME
On loan to a related party
On bank deposits

FINANCE COSTS

On lease liahilities

On amortisation of transactian costs
On bank borrowings

On bank overdrafts

On loans from a third party

On loan from a shareholder

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
Depreciation on property plant and equipment
(note 7)™

Amortisation of customer contracts

Allocated to;
Cost of sales [note 30)
Administrative expenses (note 32)

2025 2024
AED AED
3,475,708 4,857,140
80,894 88,705
128,424 100,493
212,519 447,398
053,445 470,353
161,438 204,350
152,790 329,176
652,608 50,841
2,055,961 2,743,552
7,292 787 0,292,009
393,035 871,128
99,166 46,678
492 201 917,806
56,515 45,870
664,517 -
4,345,486 =
322,258 210,738
3,859,591 2,200,230
1,653,332 1,516,088
10,911,709 3,981,976
6,833,611 2,108,721
575,725 - !
7,409,336 2,108,721
7,346,728 2,058,880
62,608 50,841
7,409,336 2,108,721

Includes depreciation on right-of-use assets of AED 119,624 {previous year AED 104,404),

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group is subject to corporate tax on revenue earned by Parent and its subsidiaries in
United Arab Emirates (9%) and in Thailand {20%). The Income tax charge is calculated based

on the applicable tax rates in these jurisdictions.
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(&)

(b}

{c)

37.

2025 2024
AED AED
InCome tax expense
Current tax on profits for the year 293,321 270,035
Total current tax expense [A) 298,321 270,035
Deferred tax benefit
Deferred Lax on loss for the year (262,4T6) —
Total current tax benefit {B) [262,476) -
Met tax benefits {A+B) 35,845 270,035
Reconciliation of taxation charge
Accounting profit before taxation 6,583,008 -
- Tax at applicable rate (9% for WAE and 20% far 761,317 e
Thailand)
= Income not subject to tax (404,693) -
- [Effect of different tax rate {39,066) -
- Effect of deferred tax 484,534 -
= Impact of post-acquisition loss in CleanMax
Alpha (766,247} -
35,845 --
Disclosed in consolidated statement of financial
position @ under:
Deferred tax assets (non-current) 481,343 -
Deferred tax liability (non-current) —Naote B 1,940,152 -
Corporate tax payvable (current) 117,128 -

FINANCLAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISKE MANAGEMENT
Financial instruments
Classification and fair values

The net carrying amounts as at the reporting date of financial assets and financial liabilities

are as follows:

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables

Due from a related party

Other financial assets {current and non-current)
Cash and cash equivalents
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2025 2024
AED AED
10,524,751 7,896,008
- 3,495,655
16,984,158 15,805,235
27,670,511 9,900,972
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At amortised cost
L0325 2024
AED AED
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (long-term and short-term) 153,987,866 43,680,542
Trade and other payables 12,889375 11,007 897
Due to a related party 1,972,728 3,823 BE4
Lease liabilities (current and non-current) 944,366 1,106,293
Loans from shareholder {current and non-current| 27,704,637 28,121,857
197,498,972 87,749,473

Fair value measurement ond disclosures
The management asiesses the fair values of all its financial assets and financial liabilities at

each reporting date.

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, other financial
assets (current), due from a related party, short-term borrowings, trade and other payables,
current lease liabilities, due to a related party and loans from shareholder (current portion)
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instrumentis

The following methods and assumptions were used to determine the fair values of other
fimanclal assetsMiabilities:

Mon-current financial assets are evaluated by the Group using valuation technigues. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markats where possible, but where this is
not feasible inputs are based on parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk
factors, individual credit worthiness of the customers and credit risks characteristics. As at
the reporting date, the carrying amounts of such receivables, net of provisions, are not
materally different from their fair values.

Fair values of loans from shareholder are estimated by discounting future cash flows using
rates currently available for debts on similar items, credit risk and remaining maturities. As at
the reporting date, the carrying amount of such liability, is not materially different from its
fair value.

Fair value of non-current lease labilities and long-term borrowings is estimated by
discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debts on similar items, credit
risk and remaining maturities. As at the reporting date, the carrying amounts of such
liabilities, are not materially different from their fair values.

Financial risk management

Risk management objectives

Risk is inherent in the Group’s activities but s managed through a process of ongoing
identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limlts and other controls. This
process of risk management is critical to the Group's continuing profitability. The Group's
risk management focusses on actively securing short to medium term cash flows by
minimizing the exposure to financial markets.
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The management conducts and operates the business in a prudent manner, taking into
account the significant risks to which the business is or could be exposed,

The primary risks ta which the business Is expesed, which are unchanged from the previous
year, comprise credit risks, liquidity risks and market risks (including currency risks, cash flow
interest rate risks and fair value interest rate risks).

The management of the Group reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
which are summarised below:

Credit sk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fall to discharge an

obligation and cause the third party to incur a financlal loss.

Credit risk is managed by assessing the creditworthiness of potential customers and the
potential for exposure 1o the market in which they operate, combined with regular
monitaring and follow-up.

Financial assets that potentially expose the Group to concentrations of credit risk comprise
principally bank accounts, trade and other receivables, due from a related party and other
financial assets.

The Group's bank accounts are placed with high credit quality financial institutions.

The management assesses the credit risk arising from trade receivables and other
receivabies, loan to related party and due from a related party taking into account their
financial position, past experience and other factors. Based on the assessment Individual risk
limits are determined.

Amounts due from a2 related party relate to transactions arising in the normal course of
business with minimal credit risk. For the year ended 31 March 2025, the group has not
recorded any allowance for expected credit losses of the amounts owned by the related
parties (2024: AED nll).

At the reporting date, the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk from such receivables
situated outside the UAE is as follows:

2025 2024
AED AED
Trade receivables
Middle East countries 3,277,555 2,766,120

At the reporting date B3% of trade recelvables was due from two customers (previous year
99 % due from four customers),

AL the reporting date 100% of due from a related party are due from a related party
{previous year 100% due from a related party).
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At the reporting date, there is no significant concentration of credit risk from any particular
industry as the Group's customers are from diverse industries.

The Group uses an allowance matrix to measure the expected credit losse:s of trade
receivables and contract assets, Loss rates are calculated using a ‘flow rate’ method based
on the probability of a receivable progressing through successive stages of delinguency to
write-off. Flow rates are calculated separately for exposures in different segments based on
the following common credit risk characteristics = geographic region, age of customer
relationship and type of product purchased.

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and expected
credit losses for trade receivables from individual customers as at the reporting date.

Lass rate Gross carnylng amount Lot allowance
2035 H2g 2025 2024 2025 Mg
% - AED AED AED BED
Mot gast dus - - 5,430,858 2 843 793 = —
0 - 180 days past due 2t T 4,255 180 2188657 - P
180 days — 1 year past due B.79% FiL 773,538 133,377 269,110 -
Iore than 1 year past due = - == =) - s

10,458,576 6,165,866 60,110
— i e i

Lass rates are based on actual credit loss experence over the past three years. These rates
are multiplied by scalar factors to reflect differences between economic conditions during
the period over which the historical data has been collected, current conditions and the
Company's view of economic conditions over the expacted lives of the receivables.

Liquidity risk
Ligquidity risk is the risk that the Group may encounter difficulty in meeting financial

obligations due to shortage of funds. The Group's exposure to lguidity risk arises primarily
from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and financial Habilities.

The Group's approach to managing liquidity Is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient fiquidity to meet s labilities when due, under both nomnal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's
reputation, The Group manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabllities. The Group limits jts
fiquidity risk by ensuring adequate bank facilities are available.

The table below summarises the maturities of the Group's undiscounted financial Habilities
at the reporting date, based on contractual payment dates and current market interest rates.
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Less than one year One b fiwe years Total
s 2024 2025 2034 225 2024
AED AED AED AED AED AED
Long-term borroawings - —  B0,915,008 A1 E4 7 243 B0,915,008 41,647,242
Shart-tarm bofrowings 73.07.658 2,043,330 - - 73,072 A5Y 2041 300
Imase liahilities 104,638 133 338 B36 253 1,371 362 1,000,891 1,500 50
Trade amd othar
payakles 12889378 11007897 = F 12,889,375 11,007,297
Lowns Fom sharehokler 15,093,927 3435204 9,610,710 24,505,553 7700637 28,121,857
Due o a related party 1972,728 3,823,884 - = 1972718  3,B23884
105,133,526 20433623 91,411,971 67,714,157 197,555,487  BR147.980
Market risk

38,

39,

Market risk is the risk that the changes in market prices, such as foreign currency exchange
rates, interest rates and prices, will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of
financial instrument. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the returms.

Currency risk
Currency risk i5 the risk that the values of financial instruments will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates.

There are no significant currency risks as substantially all financial assets and financial
liabilities are denominated in UAE Dirham or US Dollar to which the Dirham is fixed, except
for the following:

2025 2024
AED AED
Cash and bank balances
Thai Baht 10,275,609 8,694,772
Great British Pound 3,603 3,603
Trade payable
Thai Baht T16,924 T42 526
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate becauss of
changes in market inberest rates.

Loans from a third party and loans from shareholder are subject to fixed interest rates at
levels generally obtained in the UAE and are therefore exposed to fair value interest rate
risk. All H5BC bank borrowings are subject to floating interest rates linked to EIBOR and are
therefore exposed to cash flow interest rate risk.

OTHER CONTRACTED COMITEMENTS

For construction of solar equipment [note 7) 17,529,811 28,179,509

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Corporate guarantee issued by related party

(note 14) 160,367,130 54,041,199

Bankers' letter of guarantee (note 10} 2,942,675 3,409,301
163,308,805 37,450,500
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40, COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to make them

comparable to thosa of the current year.
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% PK PKF - Chartered Accountants (Dubai Br) Level 18, Rolex Tower,

s v Shelkh Zayed Road,
I L P.O,Box 13094, Dubai, LAE.

-— Aocountants &
business advisers Tel +9714 3888 200
— Email dubal@pkiuae.com
wiara pkfuae com
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Shareholder of CLEANMAX SOLAR MEMNA FICO
& Report on the Audit of the Financlal Statements
- Opimlan
We hawve audited the financial statements of CLEANMAX 50LAR MENA FZCO (the "Company” |,
— which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in eguity and statement of
- cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary

of material accounting pelicy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial

- pasition of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards issued by International

— Accounting Standards Board (IASE).

a Basis far Opinion

- We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (154s). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for

— the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in aceordance with the Intemational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for

- Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant

to our audit of the financial statements in the United Arab Emirates (LULA.E), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the [ESBA Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our apinion.

Emphasis of Matter
- We draw attention to note 2(a) to the financial statements, which states that these financial
statements relate to separate financial statements of the Company. The consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries which are required to be presented in
accordance  with International Financial Reporting Standard 10: Consclidated Financial
Statements are presented separately. Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

- Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and

fair view in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the I1ASB, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or efror.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(continued)

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going cancern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguldate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but ko do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilties for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financlal statements a5 a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material If, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 15As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skeplicism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

# Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasomableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence abtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
refated to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. if we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up 1o the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

cantinwed...
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT
{continued)

# Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events ina manner that gives a true and fair view.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant awdit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Shaji C. Joseph
Fariner
Registration no. 5723
Dbl

United Arab Emirates
23 May 2025
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2025
Notes 2025 2024
AED AED
ASSETS
Mon-current assets [
Property, plant and equipment G 33 H
Imvestments 7 120,164,435 76,359,211
Other financial assets B 1,846,988 15,164,045
122,011,456 91,533,350
Current assets
Irmeentories 9 34,675 -
Trade and other receivables 10 6,593,934 E,ﬁﬁﬂ?
Other cufrent assets 11 1,067,046 311,625
Due from related parties 12 7,801,728 8,882,219
Contract assets 13 B48,112 2,074,642
Other financial assets B 1,524,085 54,000
Cash and cash equivalents 14 11,005,227 1,062,874
28,874,817 19,065,057
Total assets 150,886,273 H'EIM?
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 15 28,627,000 24 830,000
Share premium 16 56,242,627 44,192,401
Share application maoney 17 21,472 030 =
Retained aarnings 12,362,013 8,240,421
Total equity funds 118,703,670 77,262,822
Non-current liabilities
Loans from shareholder 18 9,610,710 24,655,653
Provision for staff end-of-service benefits 19 118,255 89,172
9,728,965 24,784,815
Current liabilities
Loans from shareholder 18 18,003,927 3,426,204
Due to related parties 12 1,331,105 1,954,039
Trade and other payables 21 1,507,404 2,191,155
Other current Rabilities 22 245,600 331,566
Contract liabilities 13 1,225,602 B37,706
22,453,638 8,540,760
Total Habilities 32 182 603 33,325,585
Total equity and liabllities 150,886,273 110,588,407

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
The report of the independent suditor ks set forth on pages 1to 3,

I confirm that | am responsible for these financial statements, including selecting the accounting
policies and making the judgments underlying them. | confirm that | have made available all
relevant accounting records and information for their compitation,
Approved and authorised for issue by the shareholder on 16 May 2025 and signed on their behalf

by Ms. Shivani Agrawal.
For CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FICD




CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Notes 2025 2024
AED AED
Revenue 24 15,654,995 13,:31,51
Direct costs 25 (15,535,091) (21,189,553}
Gross profit 119,904 2,043,011
Other ncome i ] 382,869 b4,959
Share of profit from associate T (&) 1,138,837 353,153
Share of profit from joint venture 7 id) 2,146,476 29,581
Administrative expenses 27 {1,784,532) (1,541,227)
Interest income 28 570,302 1,005,118
impalrment on financial assets 10 (127,557 -
Dividend income 29 3,448,000 e
Finance costs 30 (1,772,707) (1,765,387)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE TAX 4,111,592 189,208
Corporate tax expense 3% s o
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AFTER TAX 4,121,592 189,208
Other comprehensive income:
Other comprehensive income for the year = =
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 4,121,592 189,208

The accompamying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 1to 3.
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Balance at 1 April 2023

Allotment of shares

Transaction costs

Total comprehensive income
far the year

Balance at 31 March 2024

Allatrment of shanes

Transaction costs

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Balance at 31 March 2025

Share Share Share Retained Total
capital premium application earnings
money

AED AED BED AED AED
IGE77000 19830420 14775948  BOSL213 59,534,581
7,953,000 24473361  (14,775948) - 17,650,413
- (111,330 - - (111,380)
- - - 1708 189,208
24830000 44,192,401 - BM0421  TN262822
3,707,000 12,104 BMs 21 472 0E0 - 3FITIERR
= (54,580} = 154,580)
4,11"_1,59-2 4,121,592
28627000 55242627 21471030 12,362,013 118,703,670

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
The report of the Independent auditor is set forth on pages 1 to 3.
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

2025 2024
AED AED
Cazh flows from operating activities -
Profit for the year before tax 4,121,552 m,-m
Adjustments for;
Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment 61 465
interest income {570,302) (1,005,118}
Finance costs 1,772,707 1,765 387
Provision on impalrment on financial assets 127,557 -
Credit balances written back - (23.927]
Share of profit from associate (1,138,837) (353,153)
Share of profit from joint venture (2,146 476) (29,581)
Provision for staff end-of-service benefits 29,083 17,951
1,195,385 555,232
Changes in:
= Imventories (34,675) 3,519,103
- Trade and other receivables (51,794) {3,595,796)
- Other current assets (755,421) (180,199)
= Contract assets 1,226,530 (384,327)
= Trade and other payables (683,751) 1,631,501
= Dther current Eabilities |35,966) 6,072
- Contract Rabilities 587,806 {984,715)
Interest paid (2,189,927) (1,209,018)
Met cash from/|used in) operating activities 258,187 {643,147
Cash flows from Investing activities
Investments in subsidiaries {37,788,999) {26,909,573)
Investments in joint venture (2,730,912) (1,386,755)
Investment in associates - (9,200,000)
Receipts from related parties [net) 1,080,491 620,051
Loans repaid by related parties (net) 11,897,962 3,777,248
Increase in margin depaosits (net) (41,000) {9,000)
interest received 570,302 b4, 110
Net cash used in investing activities {27,012,156) (32,373,519}
Cash flows from financlal activities
Issue of share capital 3,797,000 7,953,000
Receipts of share premium money [net) 33,576,836 9,657,413
Payment of transaction costs (54,580) (111,380}
Loan from sharehalder (net) - 9,200,000
(Payment ta)/receipts from a related party (net) _ |sz2,934) 815,508
Met cash from financing activities 36,696,322 27,554,541
Net increase/f(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 9,942 353 (5,462,525)
— Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,062,874 6,525,399
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (note 14) 11,005,227 1,062,874

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fimancial statements.
The report of the independent avditor is set forth on pages 1to 3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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b)

c)

a)

b}

REPORTING ENTITY

CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO (the “Company”) is a free zone Company with limited lability
incorporated in Dubai, United Arab Emirates under Implementing Regulation Mo, 1/98 issued
by the Dubai Airport Free Zone Authority pursuant to Law No. 2 of 1996 and its amendment
No. (2} of 2000 and amendment Law Mo, {25) of 2009 (repealed by Dubai Airport Free Zone
Authority Company Regulations 2021). The Company was registered on 23 May 2017 under a
commercial license no. 3348 and commenced its aperations since then. The registered address
is 2E MD32, Dubal Alrport Free Zone, Dubai, UAE,

The Company’s principal activity during the year was of solar energy systems & components
trading and power generation, transmission & distribution equipment.

The parent and ultimate parent company Is Clean Max Enviro Energy Solutions Private Lid.,
India. The management and control are vested with Ms. Shivani Agrawal, Director and Mr.
Kuldeep Jain, Director, Indian nationals. Mr. Kuldeep Jain (s the ultimate beneficiary owner of
the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

The financial staterments are prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards issued or
adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (1ASB) and which are effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024.

These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company. The
consolidated financial statements of the Company and s subsidiaries which are required to
be presented in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard 10: Consolidated
Financial Statements are presented separatehy.

Basis of measurement
The financial statements are prepared using historical cost.

Historical cost ks based on the fair value of the consideration given to acquire the asset or cash
or cash equivalents expected to be paid to satisfy the lability.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability In an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,

Going concern
The financial statements are preparad on a going concern basis.
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Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in UAE Dirhams (“AED™) which is also the Company's

functional currency,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The material accounting policies adopted, and which have been consistently applied, are as
follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses. The cost less estimated residual value, where material, is depreciated
from the date the asset is avallable for use until it is derecognised, using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Furniture, fixture and office equipment 5 years

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset as appropriate only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company and such cost can be measured reliably. Such cost
includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment. When significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly. The carrying amount of replaced parts is derecognised.

All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to profit or foss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

An assessment of depreciation method, useful Ihves and residual values Is undertaken at
each reporting date and, where material, it there is a change in estimate, an appropriate
adjustment is made to the depreciation charge.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying
amount. These are recognised within “other operating incomefadministrative expenses’ in

profit or loss,

Impalrment of tangible assets

At each reporting date, the management reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss i any, Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the acquirer estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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c

d)

Recoverable amount s the higher of fair value less costs 1o sell and value-in-use. In assessing
value-In-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset |or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than
its earrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced o its
recoverable amount. &n impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset | carried at & revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss s
treated a5 a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {(cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset [cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unbess the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Company exercises control. Control is achieved when
the Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable return from its involvement with the
irvestee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee,

The irvestment in subsidiaries is accounted for at cost less impalrment losses, if any.
Consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries are presented
separately.

Investments in associates

Investments where the Company has significanmt influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding between 20% and 50% of the share capital of the investes
Company, are treated as associates and accounted for under the equity method of
accounting stating the investment initially at cost and adjusted for the Company’s share of
the changes in net assets of the investee company after the date of acquisition, and for any
impairment in value,

Investments in joint arrangements
Imestments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor.
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Joint ventures

A joint venture is @ joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control,

Such investments are treated as joint ventures and accounted under the equity method of
accounting stating the investment initially at cost and adjusted for the Group's share of the
changes in net assets of the investee company after the date of acquisition, and for any
impairment in value,

Share application money

The amount received as application money for Issuance of equity shares in future has been
classified as share application money under eguity. Further, the transaction costs relating to
additional shares issues deducted from the share application under equity.

Share premium

The amount received in excess of the par value of equity shares has been classified as share
premium under equity. Further, the transaction costs retating to additional shares issues
deducted from the share premium under equity.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost s arrived at using
the Weighted Average Cost (WAC) method and comprises invoice value plus applicabie
landing charges less discounts. Met realisable value Is based on estimated selling price less
any estimated cost of completion and disposal.

Staff benefits

The Company provides staff end-of-service benefits to its non-UAE national employees as
per the applicable local laws. The entitlement to these benefits is based on the employees’
last drawn basic salary and length of services which is accrued over the period of
employment. Provision for staff end-of-services benefits are disclosed as non-current
liability.

Prowision is also made for employees’ entitlement to annual leave and air fare far aligible
employees as per the policy of the Company. Provision relating to annual leave and alr fare is
disclosed as current liability as employees are entitled to redeem these benefits at any point
of time after the reporting period.

Revenue recognition
The Company is in the business of solar energy systems & components trading and power
generation, transmission & distribution equipment.
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I. Identify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a
promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a service to the customer.

3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised
services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a
contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Company will allocate the
transaction price ta each performance obligatien in an amount that depicts the amount of
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each
performance obligation.

5. Recognise revenue when [or as) the Company satisfies a performance ohligation at a
point in time or over time.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, If ane of

the following criteria is met:

* The customer simultaneously recelves and consumes the benefits provided by the
Company’s perfarmance as the Company performs; or

=  The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced: or

* The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the

Lompany and the Company has an enforceable right to paymemt for performance
completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is
recognized at the point in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied, The
Company is required to assess each of its contracts with customers to determine whether
performance obligations are satisfied over time or at a point in time in order to determine
the appropriate method of recognising revenue.

Sale of goods

The Company has concluded that revenue from sale of goods should be recognised at a
point in time when the control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the poods.

Soles of services
The Company has concluded that revenue from sale of services should be recognised over
time wsing input method.
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The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model

as set out in IFRS 15:

1, Identify the contracts with customers: A contract is defined as an agreement between
twia or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the
criteria for every contract that must be met.
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

k)

Construction contracts

Contract revenues are recognised over a period of time, hased on the stage of complation
of the contract activity. Revenue is measured based on the proportion of contract costs
incumred for satisfying the performance obligation to the total estimated contract costs.

Contract revenues are recognised based on the stage of completion of the contract activity.
Revenue s measured based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for satisfying the
perfprmam:l.* obligation to the total estimated contract costs, there being a direct
relationship between the mput and the productivity. Claims are accounted for as income
when accepted by the customer.

Expected loss, if any, on contracts are recognised as expense in the period in which it is
foreseen, Irrespective of the stage of completion of the contract.

Contract modifications are accounted for, when additions, deletions or changes are
approved either to the contract scope or contract price. Accounting for modifications of
contracts imvobees assessing whether the services added to an existing contract are distinct
and whether the pricing s a standalone selling price. Services added that are not distinct are
accounted for on a cumulative catch-up basls, white those that are distinct are accounted
for prospectively, either as a separate contract, it additional services are priced at the
standalone selling price, or as a termination of the existing contract and creation of a new
contract if not priced at the standalone selling price.,

Contract assets

A Contract assetl is the right to consideration in exchange for services transferred to the
customer. if the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised
from the eamed consideration that is conditional. The contract assets are transferred to
receivable when the rights become unconditional.

Contract labilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer poods or services 1o a customer for which the
Company has received consideration from the customer, If a customer pays consideration
before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract Rabllity s
recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier]. Contract
liabilities are recognised as rewenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Leases

As o lessee

The Company leases office premises. Rental contracts are typically annually but may have
extension options, Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and. conditions.
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Short-term leases

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases
fi.@., those leases that have a lease torm of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, bank current accounts, bank depasits free of
encumbrance with a maturity date of three months or less from the date of deposit and
highly liguid investments with a maturity date of three months or less from the date of
investment that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Forelgn currency transactions
Transactions In forelgn currencies are translated into UAE Dirhams at the rate of exchange
ruling on the date of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies are translated into UAE
Dirhams at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date.

Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are taken to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred
except those that are attributable to the acquisition and construction of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its intended use ("qualifying asset™].
Such borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the related qualifying asset up to the date
the qualifying asset is ready for use.

Provisions
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required o settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
ohligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required 1o
settle the present obligation at the reporiing date taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flow
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of thosa
cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will b received and the amount of recevable can be measured
reliably.
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Dnerods contract

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs {i.e., the costs that the
Compary cannol svoid because it has the contract) of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. The unavaidable
costs under & contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the
lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure 1o
fulfil it. The cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract
[i.e., both incrementzal costs and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities).

Contingencies and commitments
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. They are disclosed
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, A
contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements but distlosed when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable.

Value added tax

Az per the Federal Decree-Law No. (08) of 2017, Value Added Tax [VAT), is charged at 5%
standard rate or 0% {as the case may be) on every taxable supply and deemed supply made
by the taxable person,

The Company charges and recovers Value Added Tax (VAT) on every taxable supply and
deemed supply, in accordance with the applicable commercial VAT laws. Irrecoverable VAT
for which the Company cannot avail the credit s charged to the relevant expenditure
category or included in costs of non-current assets. The Company also files its VAT returns
and compute the payable tax (which is output tax less input tax) for the allotted tax periods
and deposit the same within the prescribed due dates of filing VAT return and tax payment.
VAT receivable and VAT payable are offset and the net amount is reported in the staterment
of financial position as the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and has the intention to settle the same on net basis.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax Is recognised on temporary differences between the accounting base and the
tax base for the year and quantified using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted as on the balance sheet date

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Defermed tax assets and
liabilities are recognised for non-deductible and taxable temporary differences arising
between the tax base of assets and liabilities and thelr carrying amount in the financial
statements, except when the deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or
an asset or Hability in & transaction that is not a business combination and affecis neither
accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction,
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Deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences,

Current tax and deferred tax assets and llabilities are offset when there = a legally
entorceable right to set off the recognised amount and there is an intention to settle the
asset and liability on a net basis.

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assats and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on
current/non-current classification.

An asset s current when it is:

s Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed In the normal operating
cycle.

= Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

s Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting periad. or,

»  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

&l ather assets are classified as non-current.

& Hability is current when:

& |tz expected to be setthed in the normal operating cycle.

#» Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading.

# [|tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period. or,

=  There is no right to defer the settlement of the lability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period,

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Financlal instruments

Classificotion

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified and measured at: amortised cost; fair
value through other comprehensive income = debt investment; fair value through other

comprehensive income — equity investment; or fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at Initial recognition depends on the financial assets’
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them.
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In arder for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amaortised cost or fair value
= through other comprehensive income, it needs to ghve rise to cash fiows that are "solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI)' on the principal amount outstanding. This

- assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and ks performed at an instrumental level.
The Company's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its
— financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
— cashflows will result from collecting contractual cashfiows, selling the financial assets, or
both
— Fimancial liabilities are classified as financial abikities at fair value through profit or loss or 8t

amortised cost. The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
- recognition,

Recognition
= Financial assets and financial Habllities are recognised when, and only when, the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and

B sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Company
= commits to purchase or sell the asset.
—= Derecognition
= Financial assets are de-recognised when, and only when,

# The contractual rights to receive cash flows expire or
- » The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
- assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a

third party under a ‘pass-through' arrangement; and either
— [a} the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and reéwards of the asset,
or

= [b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantiaily all the risks and
- rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
» Financial liabilities are de-recognised when, and only when, they are extinguished i.e,, when
- obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired,
= Measurement
— A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component

that is initially measured at the transaction price] is initially measured at fair value plus, for
an Item not at falr value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition. Transactions costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets
and liabilties.
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- Finonciol assets ot amorbised cost
- Fimancial assets that meet the following conditions are subseguently measured at amortised

cost less impairment lass, if any, using the effective interest method.,

- 1. the asset is held within & business model whose objective ks to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and
Z. the contractual terms of the instrument glve rise to cash flows on specified dates that
— are solely payments of principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding.

Al other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value,
interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impalrment losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

The financial assets at amortised cost comprise of other financial assets, trade and other
receivables, due from refated parties and cash and cash equivalents.

Finoncial labiiities
Al financial lakilities are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective
- interest method or at falr value throwgh profit or loss.

Financial labilities at amortised cost comprise of trade and other payables, due to related
- parties and loans from shareholdar.

— Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses for investments in all debt

instruments not held at Fair value through profit or logs. Expected credit losses are based on

- the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of
the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the

- sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.
- Loss allowances are measured on either of the following basis:

- 12-month expected credit losses: Expected credit losses that result from possible default
events within 12 months after the reporting date; and

— Lifetime expected credit losses: Expected credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

- The Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
. losses, except for the following which are measured as 12-month expected credit losses:
- Bank balances, other financial assets, due from refated parties and other receivables Far
- which credit risk (Le., the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial
instrument] has not increased significantly since initial recognition.
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The Company has elected to measure loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets
at an amount equal to fifetime expected credit losses. The Company applies a simpiified
approach in caloulating expected credit losses. The Company does not track changes in credit
risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit losses at each
reparting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

‘When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has Increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating expected credit lasses, the Company considers
reasonable and supportive information that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and gualitative information and analysis, based on the
Company’s historical experience and Informed credit risk assessment and including forward
iooking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it
Is more than 90 days past due,

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when;
- The customer (s unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without
recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

— The financial asset is more than 360 days past due.

The maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk,

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised
cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or mare events that
have a detrimental inpact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
grcurred.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the asset,

Offsetting
Fimancial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reparted in the statement of

financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the [iability

sirnultansously.

Equity
Share capital is recorded at the value of proceeds received/receivable towards interest in

share capital of the Company.
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Falr value measurement
The Company discloses the fair value of financial instruments measured at amortised cost.

The fair walue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability

in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair

value measurement Is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or

transfer the liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or iability or

# In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using assumptions that the market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that the market
participants act in their best economic interests.

Events after the reporting period

It the Company receives information after the reporting period, but prior to the date of
authorisation for issue of the financial statements, about conditions that existed at the end
of the reporting period, it assesses whether the information affects the amounts that it
recognises in s financial statements, The Company adjusts the amounts recognised in its
financial statements to reflect any adjusting events after the reporting period and update the
disclosures that relate to those conditbons in light of the new information. For non-adjusting
events after the reporting period, the Company does not change the amounts recognised in
its financial statements, but discloses the nature of the non-adjusting event and an estimate
of its firancial effect, or a statement that such an estimate cannot be made, if applicable:

SIGMNIFICANT JUDGMENTS EMPLOYED IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Following are the judgments made in applying accounting policies, including climate-related
risks and opportunities, that affect the application of the Company's accounting policies and
the amaunts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification of financial assets
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s

contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model far managing them.

Impalrment

At each reporting date, management conducts an assessment of property, plant and
equipment to determing whether there are any Indications that they may be impaired. In
the absence of such indications, no further action is taken. If such indicathons do exist, an
analysis of each asset is undertaken to determine its net recoverable amount and, if this is
below its carrying amount, a provision is made.
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The Company applies expected credit loss model to measure loss allowance In case of
financial assets on the basis of 12-month expected credit losses or Lifetime axpected credit
losses depending on credit risk characteristics and how changes in economic factors affect
expected credit losses, which are determined on a probability-weighted basis,

Investments in joint arrangements

Management considers that it has joint control over Kanoo Cleanmax Renewables Asset Co
W.L.L wherein it holds 50% of the voting rights. Based on the contractual arrangements,
unanimous consent Is required from all the parties to the arrangement for all relevant
activities.

The Kanoo Cleanmax Renewables Asset Co WLL has been structured as a limited liability
company and provides the parties to the arrangement with rights to the net azsets of the
limited liability company under the arrangement, Consequently, the investment is classified
as a joint venture.

Recognition of revenue and allocation of transaction price

Identification of performance obligations

The Company determined that the sale of poods and services is provided as a single
component to customers and accordingly it becomes single performance obligation in
respect of the goods being sold

Determine timing of satisfoction of performance abligation

The Company concluded that the revenue from sales of goods is to be recognised at a point
in time when the control of the goods has transferred to the customers. Payment of the
transaction price is due immediately at the point the customer purchases the goods,

The Company concluded that the revenue from construction projects and operations and
management services is to be récognised over time as the customer simultaneously receies
the benefit as the Company performs.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNMCERTAINTY

Following are the key assumptions made concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that hawve a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and Kabilities within the next financial year.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis and are consistent with the Company’s risk management and
climate-related commitments where appropriate, Revisions o estimates are recognised
prospectively.
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Carrying values of property, plant and equipment

Residual values are assumed to be zero unless a reliable estimate of the current value can be
obtained tor similar assets of ages and conditions that are reasonably expected to exist at
the end of the assets’ estimated useful lhves.

Inventory provision
Management regularly undertakes a review of the Company'’s imventory, stated at AED

34,675 (previous year AED Nil) in order to assess the likely realisation proceeds, taking into
account purchase and replacement prices, technological changes, age, likely obsolescence,
the rate at which goods are being sold and the phwsical damage. Based on the assessment
assumptions are made as to the level of provisioning required.

impairment
Assessments of net recoverable amounts of property, plant and eguipment are based on
assumptions regarding future cash flows expected to be received from the related assets,

impairment of financial assets

The loss allowance for financial assets s based on assumptions about the risk of default and
expected loss rates. The management uses judgement In making these assumptions and
selecting the Inputs to the Impairment calculations based on the past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in note 3{v].

Staff end-of-service benefits

The Company computes the provision for the lability to staff end-of-service benefits stated
at AED 118,255 [previous year AED E3,171), assuming that all employees were to leawe as of
the reporting date, The management is of the opinion that no significant difference would
have - arisen had the liability been calculated on an actuarial basis as salary inflation and
discount rates are likely to have approximately equal and opposite effects.

Contract variations and claims

Variations orders are accounted for prospectively based on the nature and price of additional
products and services requested through the variation orders. During the year ended
31 March 2025, no amount of claim recognised as part of the revenue [previous year
AED Mil).

The Company includes variable consideration (including claims, re-measurable contract
values and discounts) in the transaction price 1o which It expects to be entitied from the
Inception of the contract. The amount of variable consideration is restricted to the extent
that it Is highly probable that a significant reversal In the amount of cumulative revenie
recognised will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resohved,
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recorded on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
labilities and their carrying amounts, at the rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. The ultimate realisation of deferred tax assets is dependent
upon the generation of future taxable profits during the periods in which those temporary
differences and tax loss carry forwards become deductible. The Company considers the
expected reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable income in making
this assessment. The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realisable, however, could
be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry forward
period are reduced.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Furniture, fixtures

and office
equipment
AED
Cost
ALY April 2022, at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2025 7068
Accurnulated depreciation
At 1 April 2022 6,510
Depreciation 465
At 31 March 2024 6,975
Depreciation 61
At 31 March 2025 7,038
Carrying amount
At 1 April 2022 559
At 31 March 2024 54
At 31 March 2025 33
2025 2024
AED AED
INVESTMENTS
Investment in an assoclate
CleanMax Alpha LeaseCo FZC0, Dubai
Fair value adjustment due to loss of contral 15,685,200 15,685,200
Share capital at cost 204,000 204,000
Additional investment acguired in current year 9,176,000 8,176,000
Share of comprehensive income (cumulative) 2481, 244 1,343 407
27,546,444 16,407 607

The nature of investment in an associate is as follows:
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Name of associate Principal Country of Proportion (3] of
activity incorparation ownership interest
30.9.2024 31332024
Cleaniax Alpha LeasaCo Solar energy
Fzcol systems rental HoE fafnk BE

[i} Aggregated summary financial information relating to the associates are as follows:

1.4.2024 1.4.2024
to s
30.9.2024 31.3.2024
AED AED
Azsets 130,871,644 130,955,351
Liabilitles 749,083,426 81,958,399
Revenue 11,079,705 16,472,573
Profit 2,791,266 00,902
Met assets of an associate 51,788,218 JSIIH‘H-I'EI
Interest in an associate A0 80%, A0 0%
Share of profit from associate 1,138,837 353,153
b)  Inwestment in subsidiaries
CleanMax Alpha LeaseCo FZCO0, Dubai®
Fair value of Investment in associate as of the date of
acquisition [refer 7{a}] 27 546 444 -
Add: Additional investment made for acquisition of
control 20,641,960 e
48,188,404 -
Sunroofs Enviro Solar Energy Systems LLC™ 19,520,000 13,520,000
67,708,404 13,520,000

(i

Acguisition of Control in CleanMax Alpha LeaseCo FZCO, Dubai

Vide the Supplementary and Amendment Agreement dated 1 October 2024, the Company
acquired a control of the CleanMax Alpha via higher board representation and control over
its financial and operating policies by virtue of control over CleanMax Alpha. As a result of
which 1 October 2024 |5 considered as date of acquisition of Controlling Interest in
CleanMax Alpha. Post-acquisition, the Company increased the stake in CleanMax Alpha to
50% on acquisition of stake from non-controlling shareholders,

Previously, the investment in Cleanhax Alpha LeazeCo FZCO was accounted for using the

equity method, Upon obtaining control, the Company has now recorded imvestment at
cost, kess any impairment allowance, if applicable,
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il In current year, the Company made an additional investment of AED 6,000,000, thereby
converting it into a whaolly owned subsidiary. Additionally, the Company purchased the
remaining non-controdling interest of AED 153,000 at book value.

cj  Inwestment in wholly owned subsidiaries incorporated in Thailand

2025 2024
AED AED

99,958 shares of THE 100 each comwerted & THE 1 =

AED 0,113, 100,000 shares of THE 100 each paid up

100 each converted @ THB 1= 0.1109, 1 shares of THE

100 each paid up & 100 each converted @ THB 1 =

0.1030 and 300,000 shares of THE 100 partial each paid

up @ THB 43.87 each corwerted @ THB 1 = 0.1030 in

Cleanmax IHQ (Thailand} Company Limited, Thailand

[previous year 99998 shares of THE 100 each

comwerled @ THE 1 = AED 0.113 in Cleanmax |HQ

[Thailand) Compary Limited, Thailand). 31,503,365 3,503,365

24,998 shares of THB 1,000 each converted @ THB 1 =

AED 0.11991; 12,500 shares of THB 1,000 each partial

paid up @ THE 481.41 each comverted @ THE 1 = AED

0.12200; 12,500 shares of THB 1,000 each partial paid

up @ THB 356.13 each comverted @ THE 1 = AED

0.11739; 27,500 shares of THB 1,000 partial each paid

up @ THB 250,90 each converted & THB 1 = AED

0.11316; 135000 shares of THB 1,000 partial pald up &

THE 2518 each corwerted &@ THE 1 = AED 0.1149%;

12,500 shares of THB 1000 partial each paid up @ THB

162.46 each corwerted @ THE 1 = 0.10190; 27,500

shares of THE 1000 partial each paid up & THE 749.10

each converted @ THE 1 = 0.10190; 135,000 shares of

THE 1000 partial each paid up & THB 13818 each

comerted @ THE 1 = 0.10340; 265,400 shares of THB

1,000 partial each paid up @ THB 250 each converted

@ THE 1 = 0, 10800; 135,000 shares of THB 1,000 partial

each paid up @ THB 325.93 each converted @ THB 1 =

0.10800; 135,000 shares of THB 1,000 partial each paid

up @ THB 284.09 each corwerted @ THBE 1 = 0.110%0;

265,400 shares of THB 1,000 partial each paid up @

THE 51.33 each converted @ THB 1 = 0,11050; 265,400

shares of THE 1,000 partial each paid up @ THB 20.31

each comwverted @ THE 1 = 0.10300; 164,348 shares of

THE 1,000 partial each paid up @ THE 250 each

comeerted @ THR 1 = (0.1089 in Cleanmax Energy 42,566,548 31,419,509
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(Thailand] Co., Ltd., Thailand [previous year 24,998
shares of THB 1,000 each converted @ THB 1 = AED
0,11991; 12,500 shares of THE 1,000 each partial paid
up @ THE 48141 each corverted @ THE 1 = AED
0.12200; 12,500 shares of THE 1,000 each partlal paid
up @ THE 356.13 each converted @ THB 1 = AED
0.11739; 27,500 shares of THB 1,000 partial each paid
up @ THB 25090 each converted @ THB 1 = AED
0.11316; 135,000 shares of THB 1,000 partial pakd up &
THE 251.B each converted @ THB 1 = AED D.11499;
12,500 shares of THB 1000 partial each pald up @ THB
162.46 each converted @& THB 1 = 0.1019%0; 27.500
shares of THB 1000 partial each paid up & THB 749.10
each converted @ THE 1 = 0,10190; 135,000 shares of
THB 1000 partial esch paid up & THB 138,18 each
canverted @ THB 1 = 0.10340; 265,400 shares of THB
1,000 partial each paid up & THB 250 each converted
@ THB 1 = 0.10800; 135,000 shares of THB 1,000 partial
each paid up & THB 325.03 each converted @ THB 1 =
0.10800; 135,000 shares of THB 1,000 partial each paid
up @ THB 284.09 each converted @ THBE 1 = 0.11090;
265,400 shares of THB 1,000 partial each paid up &
THE 51.33 each converted @ THB 1 = 0.11090; 265,400
shares of THE 1,000 partial each paid up @ THBE 20.31
each converted & THB 1 = 0.10300) in Cleanmax Energy
(Thailand} Co.; Ltd., Thailand,

245 shares of THB 100 each converted @ THER 1= AED

0.09841 Im Cleanmax Engineering (Thailand) Company

Limited. 2,394 2,394
46,162,307 35,015,268

The nature of investments in subsidiaries controlled by the Company are as follows:

e of sulbshdlary Principal Courtry | Proportion (%]of  Proportion %) of
act vt of legad ownership  Benefical ownership
oAt interest irtorest
1025 il 225 24

Cleanfan  Alphe - LeaseCo Salsr energy systerd rental, The LIAE 50 - 100 =
F200, Dubai solar Enengy SyIbEME repiaik are

chiped on the basis of energy

oL,
Sumronls. Envina Solar Energy Ehsctrical fitting contracting. and LUKE 100 - 100 -
Systanns LLC solar mpergy systam imtallation
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Mami of subsidlary Primcipal Country  Proportion (ol  Proportion [3%) of
activities al logal pwnership  Bensficial swnership
rrparalcn irteresl wnlEresl
nEs | 0 15 2024
Cleanmax | Business  management  and  Thalland ] g 100 100
HOQ (Thallamd) Compamy pereral service.
Limited, Thailand
Cleznmax Energy (Thailand) Empaged in production,  Thaisnd o9 o 100 100
e, L, Thaidand pusermbly,  distributon  and
management servites o build a
power plant,
Clesnrnen Erginesring Busingss maragement consulting  Thadand 41 &1 104y 190

[Thaltsnd] Coempany Limited and gonsral sorvice

2025 2024
AED AED
di  INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES
L0% interest in Konoo Cleanmax Renewnbles Assst
Co W.L.L, Bohrain
Share capital at cost 49,573 H,E_J'.fl
Additional investrnents during the year 4,018,515 1,337,182
Share of profits 214,111 29,581
Total A 4,282,199 1,416,336
50% interest in Konoo Cleanmaox Renevwables WLL
Bahrain =5
Share capital at cost 49,579 B
Share of profit 1,961,546 -
Tatal B 2,011,525 -
Total A+B 6,293,724 1,416,336
The nature of investments in joint ventures is as follows;
Marma of Joint venture Principal Courtry % of share ol
activities ol incorporation  capital held  beneficial ownership
inEpresst

W25 NS HEs g
Kango Cheanmiax Renewables Renting ard cperational leasing

Hakrain L7 B | 50 L1
Agset Cp 'W.LL, Bakraink of machimany and eguiprment
Kanoa Cheanri Rerewakde Reting and ooerational keasing Babiain = B %0 e
W.LL Bahrain™ of machinary ard equlgemant

(il  Kamoo Cleanmax Renewables Asset Co. W.LL. and Cleanmax Solar MENA FZCO are jointly
controlled ventures, with equal beneficial interest shared between the venturers under
commercial registration number 157377-1. There are no quoted market prices available for
their shares.
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Aggregated summary financial information relating to Kanoo Cleanmax Renewables Ascet Co
W.L.L not adjusted for the proportion of ownership interest held by the Company is as

follows:

Summarised statement of financial position

Non-current assets
-  Property, plant and eqguipment
= Capital work-in-progress

Current assets
Trade and other receivables

- Cash and cash eguivalents
Current assets
Total assets

Mon-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Total liabilities

Met assets

Summarised statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Revenue

Direct costs

Gross Profit
Administrative expenses
Met profit

Reconciliztion of summarised financial information

2025 2024

AED AED
12,795,999 2,263,080
10,520,130 s
23,316,129 2,263,080
2,427 B85 196,586
999,867 2,819,865
3,427,753 3,016,451
26,743,882 5,279,531
146,299 Al
17,888 285 2,476,700
18,034,584 2,476,700
8,709,298 2,802,831
1,164,143 263,326
{430,870) {133,118)
733,273 130,208
(364,214) {71,047)
T 369,059 59,161

A reconciliation of summarised financial information presented to the carrying amount of

Investment in joint venture is as follows:

Met assets

Total assets fi}

Total Eabilities (i)
[i-ii)

Total revenue

Total profit

Interest in joint venture (%)
Interest in joint venture
Carrying value™
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26,743,882 5,279,531
18,034,584 2,476,700
8,709,298 2,802,831
1,164,143 263,326
169,059 59,161,
50% 0%
4,354,649 1416336
184,530 23,581
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

2025 2024

AED AED

(a) Share of comprehensive income {cumulative): -
Profit for the year ended 31 March 2024 29,581 -
Profit for the year ended 31 March 2025 184,530 —

Total 214,111 -

(i} During the year, the Company invested in a joint ventures, Kanoo Cleanmax Renawables
W.L.L and Cleanmax Solar MENA FZCO. These ventures are jointly controlled, with egual
beneficial interest shared bétween the venturers under commercial registration number
157376-1. There are no quoted market prices available for their shares,

Aggregated summary financial information relating to Kanoo Cleanmax Renewables WL.L,
not adjusted for the proportion of cwnership interest held by the Company is as follows:

summarised statement of financial position

2025 2024

AED AED
Non-current assets
- Property, plant and equipment 7,503 =
Current assets
- Trade and other receivables 17,809,029 45
= Cash and cash equivalents 807,721 =
Current assets 18,716,750 i
Total assets 18,724,253 -
Equity 4,020,957 a5
Current liabilities 14,703 296 -
Total equity and [abilities 18,724,253 -
Met assets 4,020,957 -

Summarised statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Revanue 21,488,059 -

Direct costs (17,464,053} -

Gross Profit 4,024,006 =

Administrative expenses (100,115} =

Net profit 3,923,891 =
Page 30 of 45
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

All balances are unsecured and are expected to be settled in cash except for the guarantees
recelved. Repayment and other terms are set out in notes 7, B, 18 and 32.

significant transactions with related parties during the year were as follows:

Rayparge

Dhrect eosts

Managemsnt fae income

Expensas recharged tna
refated party

Exponses rechanged from
& redated party

Stafl costs and other
benefits

Sl end-ol-wervice
benefis

InEerast income

Snare ol profi From joint
WENTIra

Share of profit from
assoclates

Diwidend InCome {pote
3)

Fimance costs

Parent
company

1,329,738
4,730,253

745,000
125,000

1,653,332
1,516,088

BED
3,596,795
8,513,243
RS3,956
4,096,487
218,000

221,466
585,472

Subsidtaries Assoclate Joint venture Director) Total
Hey management 2035
personned
BED AED AED KED
1,029,154 6,625,989
= — 3,183,694
218,000
96,065
- - - 126,345

126,345
2,485,550

570,302
133,390

182,595 182,995

240,300 = 165,300
29,083 29,083

i i l?pm
- - 570,302

871,128 X i
~ 7146476 - L146,476

= 4,581 -
1,134,837 ~ - 1138337

353,153 - “
ATLIEY = 3,448,000
= ~ LEsa3an

AED

TI0 472

1678, 748

17,951

1,005,118

1.516,088

The Company also provides funds to/receives funds from related parties as working capital
facilities at fixed rates of interest,

Certain administrative related services are availed from a related party as per agreed rates.
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13.

14,

15,

{a)

2025 2024
AED AED
CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITES
Contract assets relating to costs incurred to fulfil a :
contract 848,112 2,074,642
Disclosed as:
Current contract assets 848,112 2,074,642
Contract iabilities 1,235,602 637,796
Disclosed as;
Current contract Rabllities 1,235,602 637,796
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on hand 2,237 4,101
Bank balances in current accounts 11,002,990 1,058,773
11,005,227 1,062,874

Balances with banks are assessed to have low credit risk of default since these banks are
highly regulated by the central banks of the respective countries. Accordingly, management
of the Company estimates the loss allowance on balances with banks at the end of the
reporting year at an amount equal to 12-month ECL. Mone of the balances with banks at the
end of the reporting year are past due and taking into account the historical default
experience and the current credit ratings of the bank, the management of the Group have
assessed that there is no impairment, and hence have not recorded any loss allowances on
these balances.

SHARE CAPITAL
lssued and paid up:
28,627 shares of AED 1,000 each [previous year

24,830 shares of AED 1,000 each] 28,627 000 24,830,000
Mame No. of shares AED
Clean Max Enviro Energy Solutions Private Ltd, 28 B2T 218,627,000

During the year vide an amendment to the memorandum of association, the Company has
increased the share capital by Bsuance of additional 3,737 shares to CleanMax Enviro Energy
Solutions Private Ltd. The shareholder as at 31 March 2025 and at 31 March 2024 and its
interest as at that date in the share capital of the Company were as follows:
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Hame At 31 March 2025 AT 31 March 2024
HNo, of AED w of %of Mo of AED % of ® of
Shares holding grofit  Shares holding.  profa
sharing © sharing
Cleanbtax Enwirg Emrgy
Solutions Private Lid. 28,627 1E,627.000 100%  100% 24,830 24H30000 100% @ 100%
637 JRGITO00 1DOW 100K 4830 MM E30000 100% 100K
2025 2024
AED AED
16.  SHARE PREMIUM®! i
Opening balance 44,192,401 19,830,420
Premium on additional shares issued
during the year 12,104,806 24,473,361
Transaction costs (54,580) {111,380)
Closing balance 56,242,627 44,192,401

HEUNUURBUUURNEREURNENEWNYNENENAdNUNENdENN

P

(b

17,

18.

(a)

Share premium of AED 56,055,127 [net transaction cost of AED 187.500) arising out of
23,077 shares issued during the year ended 31 March 2025,

SHARE APPLICATION MONEY

Dpening balance - 14,775,948
share application money on additional shares 21,472,030 =
Allotment of shares - {14,775,948)

21,472,030 =

This represents advance subscription received from the shareholder of the Company towards
the increase in share capital. As at reporting date, the legal formalities for issuing of further
share capital were not complete and on complete on of the legal formalities this amount will
be reclassified as share capital.

Further vide an amendment to the memorandum of association dated 7 April 2025, the
Company has increased the share capital by issuance of additional of 5,116 shares to
CleanMax Enviro Energy Solutions Private Lid., thus allotment of shares 1o shareholder.

LOANS FROM SHAREHOLDER"®!

Opening balance 28,121,857 18,365,488
Receipts during the vear [net) - 9,200,000
Interest credited 1,653,332 1,516,088
interest paid (2,070,552) [958,719)
Closing balance 27,704,637 2B,121,B57

These represent interest bearing loans received from the shareholder with a maturity of one
to three years from the date of receipt of loans as at reporting date. Below are the loans
details:
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(b} Loans carry interest rate of 6% per annum,

2025 2024
AED AED

Disclosed under:
Non-current portion 9,610,710 24,695,653
Current portion 18,093,927 3,426,204
T 27,708,637 28,121,857

19. PROVISION FOR STAFF END-DF-5ERVICE BENEFITS

Dpening balance 89,172 T1d3l
Provision for the year 29,083 17,951
Closing balance 118,255 89,172

20 BANK FACILITIES
Bank facilities from Mashreq Bank are secured by financial bank - guarantee of
AED 7,350,000 received from parent company.

The bank borrowings are subject to certain financial covenants such as minimum monthiy
account turnover routing excluding amy TR / LBD credits) of AED 500,000 which has been
complied with,

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables 1,240,432 1,821,772
Accruals 266,972 359,383
1,507,404 2,191,155

The entire trade and other payables are due for payment in one year.

21. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Advances received from customer 100,603 242,428
VAT payable {net) 194 997 72,133
Employee related payables - 17,005

295,600 331,566

23, MANAGEMENT OF CAPITAL
The Company's objectives when managing capital are to ensure that the Company continues
a5 a going concern and to provide the shareholder with a rate of return on its investment
commensurate with the level of risk assumed.

Capital comprises equity funds as presented in the statement of financial position along with
Inans from the shareholder, share premium and amounts due to/from related parties. Debt
comprises total amounts owing to third parties, net of cash and cash eguivalents.
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The Company is subject to externally imposed capital requirements as per provisions of the
bank facilities availed. The Company has complied with all the capital requirements to which
it is subject;

Funds generated from internal accruals together with funds received from related parties
net of funds provided to related parties are retained in the business according to the
business requirements to maintain the capital at desired levels,

REVEMNUE

The Company generates revenue from the transfer goods and services over time and at a
point in time. The disaggregated revenue from contracts with customers by geographical
segmaents, type of services and timing of revenue recognition is presented below. The
management believes that this best depicts the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of

the Company’s revenue and cash flows.

2025 2024
AED AED
Primary geographical segments
- UAE 12,306,230 20,006,631
- Thailand 36,368 459,813
Bahrain 3,312,397 2,766,120
15,654,995 13,232 564
Major pood/service lines
Construction/installation projects
= Saolar equipment instaltation 8,233,041 11,484,713
Sale of goods
- Sale of goods 6,910,192 11,426,248
Dperation and maintenance
- Operation and maintenance 511,762 321,603
15,654,995 23,232,564
Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time 7,421,954 14,750,850
- Over time 8,233,041 82,481,714
15,654,995 23,232,564
45, DIRECT COSTS
Purchase of project materials 12,960 801 16,224,395
Other direct costs 2,608,965 1,644 664
15,568,766 17,869,058
Changes in inventories [34.675) 3,320,494
15,535,091 21,189,553
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2025 2024
AED AED
OTHER INCOME
MManagement fee 218,000 #
Fareign exchange gain {net) 111,835 .=
Credit balances writhen back - 29,927
Other miscellaneous income 53,034 35,032
362,869 64,959
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Staff salaries and benefits'™ 535,938 587,222
staff end-of-service benefits 29,083 17,951
Shart-term lease expenses 34,904 35,016
Professional fees 285,650 138,871
Marketing expenses - 61,558
Commission and referral fees 212,519 50,409
Insurance charges 244,136 56,118
Audit fues 101,000 56,000
Travel expensas 5,062 21,766
Bank charges 91,461 B.B28
Depreciation (note 6) 61 465
Foreign exchange losses {net) - 1-!5.51?
Dther expenses 244,718 211,636
T 1,784532 1,541,227

It includes director's remuneration of AED 182,995 |previous year AED 168,300).

INTEREST INCOME ;
On loan to related parties 570,302 1,005,118

DIVIDEND INCOME
Dividend income from subsidiary 3,448,000 i

Dividend income Is recelved from the subsidiary, Cleaniax Alpha LeaseCo FZCO, Dubai
{previous year AED Nil).

FINANCE COSTS
On loans fram shareholder 1,653,332 1,516,088
Other finance costs 119,375 249,295

1,772,707 1,765,387
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31. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
On 9 December 2022, the United Arab Emirates (UAE]) Ministry of Finance {"MoF”] released
Federal Decree-Law Mo 47 of 2022 on the Taxation of Corporations and Businesses,
Corporate Tax Law ("CT Law") to enact a new CT regime in the UAE. The new CT regime has
bacome effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 June 2023.

As the Company's accounting year ends on 31 March, the first tax period will be the period
from 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025, with the respective tax return to be filed on or before 30
September 2025. UAE CT Law specifies that a tax rate of 9% will apply to taxable income
exceeding AED 375,000 and & rate of 0% will apply to tamable income not exceeding AED

375,000.
2025 2024
AED AED
Statement of financial position:
Corporate tax payable - =
Statement of profit or loss:
Current tax expense - =
Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit:
Profit before income tax expense {a} 4,121,592 -
Less: Exempt income
Dividend income 3,448,000 e
Share of profit from associates 1,138,837 -
(i) 4,586,837 -

Taxable income for the year {a) = (b) - 2

32, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial instruments
Classification and foir values
The net carrylng amounts as at the reporting date of financial assets and financial liabilities
are as follows:

BEE

RN R ——

At amortised cost
2025 2024
Financlal assets AED AED
Other financial assets [current and non-current) 3.371,083 15,228,045
Trade and other receivables 6,593,934 6,669,697
Due from related parties 7,801,728 B.882.219
Cash and cash equivalents 11,005,227 1,062,874
28,771,972 31,242 835
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At amortised cost
2025 2024
AED AED
Financial liabilities oy LI
Trade and other payables 1,507,404 2,191,155
Due to related parties 1,331,105 1,954,039
Leans from shareholder (current and non-current) 27,704,637 28,121,857
30,543,146 32,267,051

Fair value measurement and disclosures

The management assesses the falr values of all its financial assets and financial labilities at
each reporting date

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, due from related
parties, other financial assets (current), trade and other payables, loans from shareholder

and due to related parties approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-tenm
maturities of these instruments.

The following methods and assumptions were used to determine the fair values of other
financial assets/liabilities:

Non-current financial assets are evaluated by the Company using valuation technigues, The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is
not feasible inputs are based on parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk
Factars, individual credit worthiness of the customers and credit risks characteristics. As at
the reporting date, the carrying amounts of such receivables, net of provisions, are not
materially different from their fair values.

Fair values of long-term loans to related parties, other non-current receivables are evaluated
by the Company using valuation techniques including the discounted cash flow (DCF) modal.
The inputs to this model are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is
not feasible, Inputs are based on parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk
factors, Individual credit worthiness of the customers and credit risks characteristics. Based
on sich evaluation, provisions are made for the expected credit losses of these receivahbles.
As at the reparting date, the carrying amounts of such receivables, net of provisions, are not
materially different from their fair values, except for interest-free long-term loans to
shareholders, which due to their terms, have fair values lower than their carrying walues;

Falr values of loans from shareholder are estimated by discounting future cash flows using
rates currently available for debts on similar items, cradit risk and memaining maturities. As at

the reporting date, the carrying amount of such liability, s not materialty different from its
fair value.
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Financial risk management

Risk manogement objectives

Risk |s inherent In the Company’s activities but s managed through a process of ongoing
identification, meadsurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls, This
process of risk management §s critical to the Companys continuing profitability. The
Company's risk management focusses on actively securing short to medium term cash flows
by minimizing the exposure to financial markets,

The management conducts and operates the business In a prudent manner, taking Inbo
account the significant risks to which the business is or could be exposed,

The primary risks to which the business is exposed, which are unchanged from the previous
vear, comprise credit risks, lquidity risks and market risks (including currency risks, cash flow
interest rate risks and fair value interest rate risks).

The management of the Company reviews and agrees policies for managing each of those
risks which are summarised below:

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

Credit risk is managed by assessing the creditworthiness of potential customers and the
potential for exposure to the market in which they operate, combined with regular
monitoring and follow-up.

Financial assets that potantially expose the Company to concentrations of credit risk
comprise principally bank accounts, trade and other receivables, due from related parties,
loan to related parties and margin deposits.

The Company's bank accounts and margin deposits are placed with high credit quality
financial institutions.

The management assesses the credit risk arlsing from trade and other receivables, amounts
due from related parties and loan to related parties taking into account their financial
position, past experience and other factors. Baséd on the assessment individual risk limits are
determined.

Amounts due from related parties relate to transactions arising in the normal course of
busingss with minimai credit risk.

Al the reporting date, the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk from such receivables
situated outside the ULAE is as follows:
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2025 2024
AED : AED
Middie East countries 3,277,555 2,766,120

At the reporting date 83% of trade recefvables were due from two customers (previous year
81% due from three customers situated in the UAE),

At the reporting date 100% of due from related parties are due from related parties (previous
year 100%: due from related parties).

At the reporting date, there is no significant concentration of credit risk from any particular
industry as the Company’s customers are from diverse industries.

The Company uses an allowance matrix to measure the expected credit losses of trade
recelvables and contract assets, Loss rates are calculated using a “flow rate’ method based on
the probability of a receivable progressing through successive stages of definquency o
write-off. Flow rates are calculated separately for exposures in different segments based on
the following common credit risk characteristics — geographic region, age of customer
relationship and type of product purchased.

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and expected
credlt losses for trade recelvables from individual customers as at the reporting date.

Loss rate Gross carrying amount Loss allowance
2025 2024 20125 2024 2025 2024
% % AED AED AED AED
Not past due - ~  3,144477 @ Z2E43 792 - -
0 - 130 days past due - = 2, 545,026 2721430 - -
More than 1B0 days past due  23.49% - 543,140 129,056 127 557 =

6,532,643 5694278 127557 =

Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over the past three yvears. These rates
are multiplied by scalar factors to reflect differences between economic conditions during
the period over which the historical data has been collected, current conditions and the
Company's view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

Liguidity risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter difficulty in meeting financlal

obligations due to shortage of funds. The Company's exposure to Hquidity risk arises primarily
from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and financial Rabilities,
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The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company’s reputation, The Company manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The Comparny
lirnits its liquidity risk by ensuring adequate bank facilities are available.

The table below summarises the maturities of the Company's undiscounted financial
liabilities at the reporting date, based on contractual payment dates and current market

interest rates.
Lass tham one year Omne io five years Total
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
AED AED ARED: ED ALD AED
Trade ard other payables 1507404 | 21931155 - -  L507A04 21913155
Dua to related parties L330,105 484030 -~ - L3apies 1,554,038
Loans fram sharehaldaer 18,093,927 3406204 0610710 24605653 27,704,637 2R 1ZLAST
0932436 7E7LI98 9,510,710 24695653 0543146 32267051
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the changes in market prices, such as foreign currency exchange
rates, interest rates and prices, will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings
of financial instrument. The objective of market risk management i to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the returns.

Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the values of financial instruments will fluctuate because of
changes In foreign exchange rates,

There are no significant currency risks as substantially all financial assets and financial
liabilities are denominated in LAE Dirham or US Dollar to which the Dirham is fixed, except
for the following:

2025 2024
AED AED
Cash and bank balances
British Pound Sterling 3,603 3,603

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the ritk that the value of financial instruments will Auctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.
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Loans to related parties and loans from shareholder are subject to fixed interest rates at
levels generally obtained in the UAE and are therefore exposed to fair value interest rate risk.

2025 2024
AED AED
33, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
! Bankers' letter of bank guarantee [note 8 (c]] 2,842 675 m

34, COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to make them
comparable to those of the current period,

For CLEANMAX 50LAR MENA FZCO
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